
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
December 02, 2015 1:30 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 

PLEDGE 
INVOCATION - Reverend Juan Rodriguez of Pentecostal Church of God 
CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL  
AGENDA REVIEW 
 

Please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak card” to the City Clerk.  Action may not be taken by the Council at this 

meeting but questions may be answered by staff or issues may be referred for appropriate staff action.  If further 

action is necessary, the item may be placed on the agenda for further review and consideration.  NOTE:  Zoning or 

code enforcement matters which may be coming before the Board at a later date should not be discussed until such 

time as they come before the Board in a public hearing.  

Pursuant to F.S. 286.0114, members of the public shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard on 

propositions before the City Council.  Accordingly, comments, questions, and concerns regarding items listed on this 

agenda shall be received at the time the City Council addresses such items during this meeting.  Public comments 

are generally limited to four minutes. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
1. City Council meeting November 18, 2015. 

 
PUBLIC/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Proclamations: 

1.  Mayor's Proclamation, March 15, 2016, General Election 
 
Employee Recognition: 

 Ten Year Service Award - Tim Talley, Field Services/Police Department 
 Ten Year Service Award - Daniel Saucedo, Utility Billing/Finance Department 
 Fifteen Year Service Award - Brian Bowman, Chief’s Office/Fire Department 
 Fifteen Year Service Award - Joseph Leonard, Utility Restoration/Public Services 
 Twenty Year Service Award - Donald Klouse, EMS/Fire Department 

 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Authorize road closures for a Christmas Parade - First UMC of Apopka 
2. Rejection of Bid No. 2015-09 for a custom ambulance.           
3. Purchase of real property for installation of a traffic signal.        
4. Authorize purchase of two Automated Side Loader Refuse Trucks - Florida Sheriffs Association Contract. 
5. Authorize purchase of one Automated Front End Loader Refuse truck - Florida Sheriffs Association Contract. 
6. Authorize purchase of one Kubota M5-091 tractor - Florida Sheriffs Association Contract. 
7. Department of Corrections - Inmate work squad, Contract #WS1040.  
8. CH2M Hill, Inc. & Reiss Engineering - first extension of the contracts - Consulting Services for Professional Engineering. 
9. Authorize the evaluation and public hearing for a proposed Brownfield designation.                

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance 2459 – Second Reading - Annexation               David Moon  
2. Ordinance 2460 – Second Reading - Annexation               David Moon  
3. Ordinance 2461 – Second Reading - Annexation               David Moon  
4. Ordinance 2462 – Second Reading - Annexation               David Moon  
5. Ordinance 2463 – Second Reading - Annexation               David Moon  
6. Ordinance 2464 – Second Reading - Amending Chapter 46 of the Code of Ordinances           Brian Bowman 
7. Ordinance 2465 – Second Reading - Annexation               David Moon 
8. Ordinance 2467 – First Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment           David Moon 
9. Ordinance 2468 – First Reading – Change of Zoning              David Moon 
10. Ordinance 2469 – First Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment           David Moon 

Page 1



  
 

11. Ordinance 2470 – First Reading – Change of Zoning              David Moon 
12. Ordinance 2471 – First Reading – Change of Zoning              David Moon 
13. Ordinance 2472 – First Reading – PUD Master Plan                                                      David Moon 
14. Resolution 2015-25 - Reimbursements from proceeds of tax-exempt debt.                       Glenn A. Irby 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Preliminary Development Plan – Copart, Inc.               David Moon 
2. Council  
3. Public 

 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

December 3, 2015 5:30pm - 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

December 6, 2015 5:30pm - 7:30pm Apopka Festival of Trees Kickoff Event 

December 8, 2015 5:00pm - 6:00pm Planning Commission Meeting 

December 9, 2015  11:00am – 2:00pm City Council Apopka Visioning Community Review 

December 11, 2015 5:30pm - 8:00pm Holiday Movie at the Amphitheater 

December 12, 2015 10:00am - 12:00pm Apopka Christmas Parade 

December 12, 2015 4:00pm – 6:00pm Winter Wonderland & Tree Lighting 

December 12, 2015  6:00pm – 8:00pm  Holiday Bonfire at Edwards Field 

December 13, 2015  5:30pm – 7:30pm Festival of Trees Closing Ceremony & Silent Auction 

December 16, 2015 7:00pm – 10:00pm City Council Meeting 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two 
(2) working days in advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any 
decision or recommendation made by Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the 
proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record 
includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  
  

Page 2



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. City Council meeting November 18, 2015. 
  

Page 3



CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m., in 

the City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Sam Ruth 

City Attorney Andrew Hand 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 
 

PRESS PRESENT:    John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

    Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel 
 

INVOCATION – Commissioner Dean introduced Reverend Richard King of St. James AME 

Church, who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Kilsheimer said in the fall of 1620, more than 100 

Pilgrims set sail from England on the Mayflower and made landfall two months later in Plymouth, 

Massachusetts. The Pilgrims lost half their group during the first winter. With the help of two 

members of local Native American Tribes, the settlers were able to successfully farm the lands and 

by the following autumn, they reaped a bountiful crop. To celebrate the harvest and to give thanks, 

Governor William Bradford called for a feast and invited the local Native American Tribes who 

worked alongside the Pilgrims to sustain their Colony.  The Tribes and the Pilgrims hunted 

together and feasted for three days. It became a tradition for colonists to celebrate the harvest 

annually with the feast of Thanksgiving and President Abraham Lincoln proclaimed the final 

Thursday in November to be a national holiday in 1863. However, Franklin D. Roosevelt signed a 

joint resolution of Congress in 1941, which established the fourth Thursday of November as a 

national holiday, the day we currently celebrate as Thanksgiving. He asked everyone to reflect 

upon the spirit and collaboration between the Pilgrims and Native American Tribes that made it 

possible for Plymouth to flourish and for our nation to give thanks as he led in the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. City Council meeting November 3, 2015. 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to 

approve the minutes from the City Council meeting of November 3, 2015.  Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 

Presentations: 

1. Artist to present renditions of the Mayor Land Statues – Mr. Peter Pasha presented scale 

model maquettes of the Mayor John Land statues. One will be a larger than life statue of 

Page 4



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 2 

 
 

Mayor Land standing and will be on the front lawn of City Hall. The other is a life size 

statue that will be on a bench in Kit Land Nelson Park.  

 

It was the consensus of the Council to proceed with the final product.  

 

CONSENT  

1. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of October, 2015. 

2. Approval of CH2M Hill Engineers Inc., proposal for architectural and engineering 

services. 

 

Item 2 was pulled for discussion and comments from the public. 

 

Suzanne Kidd said this was for a building that will replace the building at Alonzo 

Williams Park and she questioned if this was for the actual services for CH2M Hill to put 

the drawings together or was it the actual projected cost for the building. She further 

inquired what specifications the City submitted with regards to ceiling height, how the 

square footage was determined, and if there was any opportunity for a concerned citizen 

to have any input.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this amount was for the drawings.  He stated there could be a 

process determined to receive input.  

 

Commissioner Dean inquired if there were any bids for the company that was selected. 

 

City Administrator Irby affirmed the City had previously short listed two engineering 

firms for continuing services contracts. CH2M Hill was one of the firms shortlisted and is 

under a continuing services contract. They were chosen for this process as they have an 

architect on staff.  He advised we are counting upon a CDBG $750,000 grant to make 

these improvements and we are on a deadline to submit the architectural drawings which 

are a requirement of the grant. 

 

Commissioner Dean inquired why the City cannot set aside $750,000 in case we are not 

awarded the grant so that we can move forward with this building.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said if the City is not awarded the grant, the option of allocating the 

$750,000 can be done. The time limit is upon submitting the grant application and we 

need to obligate the funds for the design in order to submit the grant.  

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith said it was unfortunate the position the City is in with being 

limited to two firms and only one having an architect on board. He felt $100,000 for a 30 

foot building was exorbitant and it is a gamble. He said if it was up to him to come up 

with $750,000, he would spend these funds on a new fire station.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer affirmed the City of Apopka has not applied for a CDBG grant in more 

than 10 years. The likelihood of receiving the grant is high. He advised Mr. Irby worked 

on bringing the fee down to a more reasonable one. He inquired if this was postponed for 

two weeks would it compromise the schedule for the grant. 

 

Page 5



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 3 

 
 

Mr. Irby affirmed this grant would include more amenities that just the building.  

 

Jeff Plaugher advised the grant is due the first week in March and if we miss this round, 

there is no guarantee there will be another chance as the CDBG is legislative driven. He 

explained we are applying for a small city grants and there are a lot of pluses with this 

grant.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve the 2 items on the Consent Agenda.  

 

David Hoffman inquired if he heard correctly the $90,000 was for architectural drawings 

and the $750,000 was for the construction to which Mayor Kilsheimer advised the total 

grant was $750,000 and that would go toward the building and other amenities.  

 

Ray Shackelford asked Council to move forward with this project and applauded their 

efforts for applying for grant funds.  

 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners 

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 

1. Ordinance 2459 – First Reading – Annexation.  The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2459 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO 

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO 

ANNEX PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE 

HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY JTD LAND AT 

ROGERS RD., LLC, LOCATED AT 2303 ROGERS ROAD; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2459 at First Reading, and carry it over for a Second 

Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

2. Ordinance 2460 – First Reading – Annexation.  The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2460 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA FLORIDA, TO 

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO 

Page 6



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 4 

 
 

ANNEX PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE 

HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY HUY TRAN AND HAI 

ANH NGUYEN, LOCATED AT 904 SCHOPKE LESTER ROAD; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2460 at First Reading, and carry it over for a Second 

Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

3. Ordinance 2461 – First Reading – Annexation.  The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2461 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA FLORIDA, TO 

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX 

PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER 

DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA, OWNED BY PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, 

LLC, LOCATED AT 300 WEST 2ND STREET; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 

AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2461 at First Reading, and carry it over for a Second 

Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 
 

4. Ordinance 2462 – First Reading – Annexation.  The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2462 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA FLORIDA, TO 

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX 

PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER 

DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY DEBRA EVANS CARGIL, 

LOCATED AT 202 SOUTH HAWTHORNE AVENUE; PROVIDING 

FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Page 7



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 5 

 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner 

Velazquez, to approve Ordinance No. 2462 at First Reading, and carry it over for a 

Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

5. Ordinance 2463 – First Reading – Annexation.  The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2463 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA FLORIDA, TO 

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX 

PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER 

DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY APOPKA CLEAR LAKE 

INVESTMENTS, LLC, LOCATED SOUTH OF PETERSON ROAD 

AND WEST OF BINION ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 

THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2463 at First Reading, and carry it over for a Second 

Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

6. Ordinance 2464 – First Reading – Amending Chapter 46 of the Code of 

Ordinances.  The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2464 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 46, “FIRE 

PREVENTION AND PROTECTION” OF THE APOPKA MUNICIPAL 

CODE, BY AMENDING ARTICLE III, “FIRE CODES AND 

STANDARDS”, SECTION 46-76 TO ADOPT THE FLORIDA FIRE 

PREVENTION CODE (NFPA 1) AND THE LIFE SAFETY CODE 

(NFPA 101) BY REFERENCE; AMENDING SECTION 46-78, THE 

FLORIDA FIRE PREVENTION CODE, CHAPTER 13, “FIRE 

PROTECTION SYSTEMS”, PARAGRAPH 13.3.1.2, “GENERAL”; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK; 

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Page 8



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 6 

 
 

Brian Bowman gave a brief lead in stating this has been in place since 1996 and benefits 

the community as it is a safety and strict sprinkler ordinance. This ordinance is updating 

the standards.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to 

approve Ordinance No. at First Reading, and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

7. Ordinance 2465 – First Reading – Annexation.  The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2465 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA FLORIDA, TO 

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX 

PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER 

DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY  JERRY KIRKLAND AND 

LANNETTE KIRKLAND, LOCATED AT 3707 ROCK SPRINGS 

ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2465 at First Reading, and carry it over for a Second 

Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

8. Resolution 2015-24 – Invocation Policy for City of Apopka meetings. The City Clerk 

read the title as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-24 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, REGARDING A CEREMONIAL OPENING 

INVOCATION AND RECITATION OF THE PLEDGE OF 

ALLEGIANCE AT COUNCIL MEETINGS PRIOR TO OFFICIAL 

POLICYMAKING AND LEGISLATIVE FUNCTIONS; ADOPTING A 

POLICY OF NON-EXCLUSION AND SELECTION OF 

VOLUNTEER INVOCATION SPEAKERS AND A DIVERSITY OF 

VIEWPOINT AND NON-EXCLUSION OF THOSE IN 

ATTENDANCE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY 

AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Page 9



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 7 

 
 

 

City Attorney Andrew Hand advised the changes from the last meeting are slight and are 

mainly nuances. He said there is now a specific reference to an opening ceremony that has 

been incorporated throughout the resolution. This comports with Supreme Court Justices’ 

acknowledgement that invocations are part of a ceremonial meeting. He reviewed the 

highlights of the resolution and advised references of places of worship has been broadened.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said he believed it was important to preserve our ability to hold 

invocations.  

 

In response to Commissioner Velazquez inquiring if the Council will continue to rotate with 

regards to inviting one to give the invocation, Mayor Kilsheimer said they would still rotate, 

but there will be a database maintained to choose from. 

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith said in the rare occasion the individual does not show up, you 

have the right to have a moment of silence or dispense with the invocation. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to public participation. 

 

Barb Zakszewski spoke regarding the ceremonial opening and recitation of the Pledge of 

Allegiance, stating cities and government entities were scrambling to develop inclusive 

invocation policies that celebrate diversities. She declared we were twisting ourselves up in 

knots rather than tackling real city business and said if you support the policy, you must be 

prepared to defend the right for all groups to have their say. She stated she supported a 

moment of silence in lieu of an invocation.  

 

Tenita Reid said this was a very emotional issue and we all value our freedoms to worship 

on what we believe.  She said we should listen to and take the attorney’s advice to have a 

moment of silence. 

 

Suzanne Kidd said since the City seems determined to enshrine the practice of invocations 

into city policy with this resolution, rather than taking the more pragmatic route of simply 

providing a moment of silence, she would like to add her comments and point out two 

potential pitfalls. One positive direction she saw was that citizens will have the choice to 

stand or not during opening ceremonies. She stated she would hope the option to leave will 

not be publically announced. She expressed concern that individual citizens unaffiliated 

with any group or belief system, yet with the same civic spirit and goodwill as any 

religiously affiliated speaker on the approved database will, by the wording of the speaker 

selection section, be excluded from the process. She further expressed concern of diversity 

by utilizing the database on a first serve, first come basis.  

 

Dale Fenwick said silence is not an option and the proposed policy was the right one for our 

community. He said this has been crafted in compliance with decisions from the Supreme 

Court.  He said seeking divine guidance on public deliberations predates the founding of 

our nation and remains a vital part of our governing bodies. He spoke to the Supreme Court 

rulings in the Town of Greece with regards to spiritual needs of lawmakers connecting them 

to a tradition dating to the time of the framers of the Constitution.  He affirmed a moment of 

silence states we have given in and requested this resolution be approved.  

Page 10



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 8 

 
 

 

Pastor Doug Bankson thanked the City Commission and Attorneys for working hard on this 

matter. He said our freedom of speech and freedom of religion is what is at stake here and it 

was the first foundation in our Bill of Rights. He stated this policy is the right move rather 

than to be silenced. 

 

Ray Shackelford spoke in agreement to some of the comments he heard from Suzanne Kidd 

and said his concerns are not whether we continue to have prayers from local pastors and 

citizens, but rather what we do after we hear those prayers. 

 

Tony Foster said this was new to him and it is ironic that he was talking about the power of 

prayer earlier today. He said while he understands the legalities regarding prayer and 

schools, and he was not necessarily backing the resolution, but he was backing prayer and 

stated silence hides who we are.  

 

Reverend King spoke regarding this, stating silence was not an option.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public input.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to 

approve Resolution No. 2015-24.  

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith pointed out that this administration has had 126 votes and fewer 

than 10 were not unanimous.  

 

Commissioner Dean said he was not against prayer, but he felt with silent prayer no one is 

discriminated against.  

 

Motion carried 4-1 with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye, and Commissioner Dean voting nay. 

 

 

APPROPRIATIONS/DONATIONS/GRANTS 

 

1. O.C. Grant Award – Acceptance of EMS Simulation Training & Debriefing 

Solution System 

 

Will Sanchez gave a brief presentation of the full body EMS system Metiman grant being 

awarded by Orange County Medical Director. He said this provides the best patient care 

to the community. He advised the original cost was $68,000 and by researching, they 

were able to locate a demo version in the amount of $40,000. By approving this grant it 

will be fully funded and there will be no cost to the city.  Ownership will be taken in mid-

December. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner 

Velazquez, to accept the grant. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer 

and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

  

Page 11



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 9 

 
 

 

2. KaBOOM! Grant – Acceptance of the letter of intent and funding. 

 

Glenn Irby reported the City has been selected to participate in a screening with 

KaBOOM!, a non-profit organization that is dedicated to providing children with places 

to play and if selected, the City of Apopka would be awarded a grant to purchase new 

playgrounds for Lake Avenue Park and/or Alonzo Williams Park.  There were two 

separate applications submitted and the first will be for Lake Avenue Park.  The City will 

fundraise $8,500 toward the cost of the playground equipment and will own and maintain 

it. We provide the land and secure necessary permits, remove existing playground 

equipment, and recruit community volunteers to help construct the playground. Staff is 

requesting approval to accept the KaBoom! Letter of Intent.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to 

direct staff to continue the process of application. Motion carried unanimously with 

Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth 

voting aye. 

 

BUSINESS 

1. Orange County – 2016 Election Services and Equipment Use Agreement 

 

Linda Goff, City Clerk, said this was the standard Services and Equipment Use 

Agreement with the Supervisor of Elections. The General Election will be at no or 

minimal cost to the City, as it is in conjunction with the Presidential Preference Primary, 

however, in the event there is a Run-off Election, the City would assume associated 

costs. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to 

approve the 2016 Election Services and Equipment Use Agreement as presented. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners 

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

2. Florida Hospital Apopka – Transportation Improvement Development Agreement 

 

David Moon, Planning Manager, gave a brief lead in for the Florida Hospital Apopka 

Transportation Improvement Development Agreement. He advised on November 19, 

2014, the City Council approved the Transportation Improvements Development 

agreement with Adventist Health Systems\Sunbelt, Inc. This is the first amendment to 

that agreement. He advised staff is recommending approval of the agreement.  

 

In response to an inquiring of Commissioner Velazquez, Mr. Moon advised 11% will be 

covered by the Hospital’s cost and the other 89% are general impacts of traffic from the 

surrounding area. However, that improvement qualifies for impact fee credits or 

transportation impact fee funds, as defined within the agreement. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to 

approve the Transportation Improvement Development Agreement with Florida 

Hospital, Apopka.  

Page 12



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 10 

 
 

 

Suzanne Kidd inquired how the cost share of 11% from the Hospital versus 89% from the 

city is coming; stating it was no cash out of pocket, but it was impact fees that are not 

going to be coming to the city that under ordinary circumstances would be. Also, the 

proposal calls for landscaping, hardscaping, and irrigation maintenance to be assumed by 

Florida Hospital, unless the city assumes the costs. She inquired if the city was assuming 

the maintenance costs.  It also mentions this will only move forward if the city and the 

county are able to have an agreement for the city to take over the maintenance of Ocoee 

Apopka Road. She further inquired about the Harmon Road extension. 

 

Mr. Moon advised Ocoee Apopka Road is a county road and they currently maintain it 

from the intersection of Binion Road to downtown Apopka.  Negotiations are currently 

underway to have that transferred to the city to maintain. He advised eventually, with 

annexations, the city would be taking it over. This jurisdiction allows the city to control 

the driveway cuts. He advised the Hospital has agreed to maintain the landscaping for a 

certain period of time.  

 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners 

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

3. Council 

 

Commissioner Ruth inquired about the outcome of the property required at Plymouth 

Sorrento and Lester Roads in order to place a signal in that area.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was still under discussions and they were awaiting a 

response. He stated a quick take was also being looked into.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to 

direct the City Attorney to begin the process of a quick taking of the southwest 

corner of Plymouth Sorrento and Lester Roads. Motion carried unanimously with 

Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth 

voting aye. 
 

4. Public 

 

Reverend Richard King presented a video and a Community Resolution on One Apopka 

submitted by the South Apopka Ministerial Alliance. He asked the Council to consider 

the contents of the resolution and what improvements need to be made.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised the city was already making progress on two of these items; 

one being policies and procedures for all city owned community centers.  He reported the 

Summer Youth Jobs Program funding has been increased and Career Source of Central 

Florida has committed $100,000 to the Apopka Youth Works Program and there will be 

enough for 75 positions. He advised Dr. Jackson has been working on this program and 

credited her for almost doubling the scope of the program. He said the City is moving 

forward on these matters.  

 

 
Page 13



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 11 

 
 

Commissioner Dean said he would like to recognize and thank the community leadership 

in coming forward with a thoughtful and objective presentation. He said he especially 

liked that it addressed all of the citizens of Apopka.  He stated he would hope all of his 

colleagues would be mindful of the issues addressed in this resolution. 

 

Ed Poirier said he came here tonight to request some help, saying his wife died of cancer 

four months ago. He lives on Park Glen Circle and said his street had quite a bit of cancer 

going on. He stated the Mayor was kind enough to reach out to him a couple of months 

ago and brought in some people from the Department of Health. Mr. Poirier stated the 

Department of Health promised to provide some statistics for Apopka Cancer cases that 

have never been received. Mr. Poirier stated another gentleman at the meeting promised 

to go to his house and conduct a study. He advised this person came to his house and told 

him he would be taking water and soil samples. He received an email from him a week 

later, only to be told their investigation was over and they did not find anything. He said 

he was here because he has asked the Mayor to petition the State Department of Health to 

come back and finish their job. He affirmed in his research he has found the City only 

tests for pesticides once every three years. He said even though certain items may not be 

regulated, the City has a moral obligation to their citizens to let them know there may be 

a health risk with some of the water. He reiterated he was here to ask the City to go back 

and request the Department of Health finish the job they started.  He said it was 

important for the City to find the funding to conduct this testing from an independent 

agency.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said he has been working with Mr. Poirier over the last several months 

and during that time he has learned a lot about the water and how the Health Department 

evaluates and investigates cancer clusters. He affirmed there is a 48 page document that 

the Federal CDC publishes that states exactly how state health departments should 

investigate cancer clusters. There are six conditions that must be met and it is a four step 

process of investigating cancer clusters and every step along the way has a threshold that 

must be met. He affirmed he called in the Department of Health that came and met with 

Mr. Poirier and took his information. He said the pertinent paragraph in this states: 

“There are a number of factors that do not support the need for further investigation and 

those include: the State Department of Health should not proceed if the types of cancers 

that have been reported are different types of cancers, not known to be related to one 

another, or are a few cases of very common cancers, or if there is a lack of a plausible 

environmental cause.”   He reiterated this is not the City of Apopka, the State Department 

of Health, but it is the Federal Government laying down instructions on how to 

investigate cancer clusters. He stated with Park Glen Circle there are two cases we know 

of where two women passed away of breast cancer as the confirmed cases. There are not 

seven confirmed cases. 

 

Mr. Poirier said there were seven cases and ten people were about to die. He walked out 

stating he was all done talking to the Mayor, declaring he would be back the next 

meeting. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the bottom line was the Florida Department of Health was called 

in and said there was no evidence of a cancer cluster on Park Glen Circle. The Florida 

Department of Environmental Protection came in and checked all of our records and 

Page 14



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 12 

 
 

procedures at the Grossenbacher Water Plant and it was well within the established 

limits. They also went to Park Glen Circle and went to the home of the Breck family and 

measured the chlorine and it was within limits.  

 

Debbie Turner, from the Debbi Turner Cancer Resource Center in Apopka, said she 

wanted to explain to this community that she has 85 children in middle school and high 

school that they host on a weekly basis at the Cancer Center whose parents have been 

diagnosed with cancer. This past year she has done 65 extra team groups because the 

children are coming in to the Center asking why their parents have cancer and if they 

drink the water in the City will they die, too. She said this community needs to band 

together and realize the facts of this. She affirmed she researched from Yale University, 

Duke University, and the National Cancer Institution and there is not one case ever 

documented that drinking water causes cancer or death. She said she is personally a 

cancer survivor and understands a grieving family. When you are grieving you try to 

blame someone and she stated the blame is not on the City, but on the disease of cancer.  

 

Ray Shackelford said in his lifetime he has worn many hats. One hat worn in the past was 

serving on a statewide environmental justice commission that looks at causes of cancer 

throughout the State of Florida.  Based upon their research, the contaminants in water can 

cause cancer. He applauded the Mayor’s efforts in reaching out to this family.  He said 

with regards to the Community Resolution, it embraces a reality for progress that all 

people in all communities must be involved in the economic development process and 

management within city government. He asked how often they can expect an update on 

the action items listed on the resolution.  

 

Commissioner Dean inquired if the Council was going to act on this resolution. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said it has not been forgotten and reiterated that the two items of 

progress have been made. He said this was not a resolution by the government of the City 

of Apopka, it was by the South Apopka Ministerial Alliance. He further declared, he 

takes everything the Ministerial Alliance says seriously and we are working on these 

items on an individual basis. He pointed out a Charter Review process was completed in 

2013.  

 

Rod Love commended Pastor King and the South Apopka Ministerial Alliance as it 

relates to this resolution. He said you have to give City Council credit where credit is due 

and this has been addressed. He spoke with regards to Chief McKinley and his being 

aggressive and the Fire Department and their academy reaching out to diversify.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding Minority Diversity studies and the City of Apopka not being 

able to join with the City of Orlando on their study.  

 

Ray Shackelford said the lobbyist stated we should be able to put language in the 

document related to the town center project about minority women and veteran 

contractors. If able to put language in that document, we should be able to reach out to 

the contractors in general.  

 

 

Page 15



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 13 

 
 

Ed Hollingsworth said he was trying to improve the look of the Chuck Wagon and has 

met with city planners to try and get a mural on the dumpster wall to the back of the 

building. He stated he was told by moving the logo or name it would then be considered 

artwork. He showed the artwork he was trying to get improved and said he was here to 

ask Council to give him permission to do a mural. He said he was trying to clean the area 

and have outdoor seating.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer thanked Mr. Hollingsworth for coming and asked him to meet with 

Mr. Irby to work through this process and a compromise.  

 

 

MAYOR’S REPORT – No report.  

 

 

ADJOURNMENT –The meeting adjourned at 9:36 p.m. 

 

 

___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

Page 16



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1.  Mayor's Proclamation, March 15, 2016, General Election 
  

Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Authorize road closures for a Christmas Parade - First UMC of Apopka 
  

Page 20



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

  x   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  December 2, 2015 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:               Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        Application & Map 

       OTHER:   

  
 

SUBJECT: FIRST UMC OF APOPKA – APOPKA CHRISTMAS PARADE.  

 

Request: AUTHORIZE THE CLOSURE OF ROADS FOR THE UMC OF APOPKA TO 

CONDUCT A CHRISTMAS PARADE.  

  
SUMMARY: 

 

First UMC of Apopka is requesting the City Council approve road closures for the annual Apopka 

Christmas Parade being held on Saturday, December 12, 2015, beginning at 10:00am.  The Parade is to 

begin at the intersection of 1st Street and Forest Avenue traveling south to 3rd Street, then west to South 

Park Avenue.  The parade will proceed north to Votaw Road and end at Apopka Memorial Middle School.   

Street closures are requested as indicated on the attached application map for the following streets: 1st Street, 

2nd Street, 3rd Street, Park Avenue, and S. Highland Ave.  The Development Review Committee has 

reviewed the special events permit application and has found it to be consistent with the Land Development 

Code.   

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the closure of the roads associated with the UMC of Apopka Christmas Parade on Saturday, 

December 12, 2015.  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Rejection of Bid No. 2015-09 for a custom ambulance.           
  

Page 27



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

   X   CONSENT AGENDA    MEETING OF:  December 2, 2015 

______ PUBLIC HEARING     FROM:    Fire Department 

        SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS:  

        OTHER:  
 

SUBJECT: ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF BID NO. 2015-09 DATED NOVEMBER 12, 2015 

AND AUTHORIZE STAFF TO REJECT BIDS RECEIVED DURING BID 

OPENING AND INITIATE A NEW REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL REGARDING 

ONE (1) CUSTOM AMBULANCE.  

 

REQUEST:   AUTHORIZE THE REJECTION OF BID NO. 2015-09 REGARDING ONE (1) 

CUSTOM AMBULANCE ON DEMAND STAR.   
  
SUMMARY:  

 

On November 12, 2015, a Bid Opening was held in response to an Invitation to Bid No. 2015-09 for One (1) 

Custom Ambulance. The original Invitation to Bid was duly advertised in the Apopka Chief on Friday, 

October 9, 2015 and was placed on Demand Star as well as the City’s website.  Two (2) Sealed Bids were 

received prior to the deadline of 10:00 am on November 12, 2015 and the said bids were opened at 10:15 

a.m. in Council Chambers.  Due to some ambiguity in the language in the bid specs, it was not clear as to 

whether the chassis was to be included in the bid or whether the City was to provide it.  After careful 

review, staff is requesting authorization to post a rejection of bid on Demand Star in order to initiate a new 

Invitation to Bid regarding same. 

 on    
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Apopka Fire Department - 2015-2016 approved budget item.  
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Acknowledge receipt of BID No. 2015-09 dated November 12, 2015 and authorize staff to reject both bids 

received and initiate a new request for proposal regarding one (1) customer ambulance.  
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director  Public Services Director 

Commissioners     HR Director   City Clerk    

CA Glenn Irby      IT Director   Fire Chief 

Community Development Director  Police Chief    

 

Page 28



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Purchase of real property for installation of a traffic signal.        
  

Page 29



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

  x   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 2, 2015 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Map 

       OTHER:   
  

 

SUBJECT: PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR INSTALLATION OF A TRAFFIC 

SIGNAL. 

 

Request: DIRECT STAFF TO CONTRACT WITH LAND OWNER TO ACQUIRE REAL 

PROPERTY. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

At the Council Meeting of November 18, 2015 staff reported that it was having difficulty obtaining 

ownership of a parcel of land belonging to Khiet and Mai Nguyen located at the intersection [southwest] 

of Plymouth Sorrento Road and Lester Road/Yothers Road [1840 Plymouth Sorrento Road].  The 

property measures 12,921 square feet and is 20 feet in width and 635 feet in length [approximately .297 

acres].  This intersection is in dire need of signalization and this property is necessary for installation of a 

mast arm. 

 

Staff has attempted to negotiate with the Nguyen’s and have offered more than the $8,011 appraisal; 

however, they have only asked for more.  However, on Monday, November 23, 2015 the Nguyen’s 

attorney contacted staff and indicated they would accept $28,000 along with payment of all necessary 

closing costs.  While this is more than the value of the land, the city needs the property for a safety 

concern and has two choices: pay the amount now requested by the land owner or perform a “taking”.  

We have been advised by the city’s attorney that the latter would likely cost much more than $28,000.  

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

 General Fund Reserves    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

City Council approval to contract with the land owner and acquire real property.   
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 30



 

Page 31



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Authorize purchase of two Automated Side Loader Refuse Trucks - Florida Sheriffs Association Contract. 
  

Page 32



 
 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: December 2, 2015 

PUBLIC HEARING FROM:  Public Services 

SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS: 

OTHER: 
 

 

 

SUBJECT: MACK AUTOMATED SIDE LOADER REFUSE TRUCK FOR SANITATION 

POWERED BY COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS (CNG) 
  

Request:     AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF TWO AUTOMATED SIDE LOADER 

REFUSE TRUCKS THROUGH THE FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION 

CONTRACT, IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $660,412.44. 

  
 

 

SUMMARY: 

 

The purchase of the following Automated Side Loader refuse trucks for Sanitation will replace trucks 

24-1140 and 24-1141, both 2007 Mack trucks.  The pricing comes from the local Mack dealer Nextran 

Truck Center through the Florida Sheriffs Association Contract Bid No. # 15-13-0904.  The price quote 

for one vehicle is as follows : 

 

Nextran Truck Center (Orlando Mack) Mack LEU & New Way Body 

 

$330,206.22 

 

 

FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

Funding is included in the Sanitation Fund FY16 Budget (402-321-534.6400). 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Authorize the purchase of two Automated Side Loader Refuse Trucks through the Florida Sheriffs 

Association Contract, in the total amount of $660,412.44. 
 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer 
Commissioners  

City Administrator 
Community Development Director 

 
Finance Director 
Human Resources Director 
Information Technology Director 
Police Chief 

 

Public Services Director  

Recreation Director 

City Clerk  
Fire Chief  

 

Page 33



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Authorize purchase of one Automated Front End Loader Refuse truck - Florida Sheriffs Association 
Contract. 

  

Page 34



 
 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: December 2, 2015 

PUBLIC HEARING FROM:  Public Services 

SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS: 

OTHER: 
 

 

 

SUBJECT: MACK AUTOMATED FRONT END LOADER REFUSE TRUCK FOR 

SANITATION POWERED BY COMPRESSED NATURAL GAS (CNG) 
  

Request:     AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF ONE AUTOMATED FRONT END 

LOADER REFUSE TRUCK THROUGH THE FLORIDA SHERIFFS 

ASSOCIATION CONTRACT, IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $301,588.42. 

  
 

 

SUMMARY: 
 

The purchase of the following Automated Front End Loader refuse truck for Sanitation will replace 

truck 22-0920 a 2007 Mack truck.  The pricing comes from the local Mack dealer Nextran Truck Center 

through the Florida Sheriffs Association Contract Bid No. # 15-13-0904.  The price quote for the vehicle 

is as follows : 

 

Nextran Truck Center (Orlando Mack) Mack MRU & New Way Body 

 

$301,588.42 

 

 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Funding is included in the Sanitation Fund FY16 Budget (402-321-534.6400). 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the purchase of one automated Front End Loader Refuse truck through the Florida Sheriffs 

Association Contract, in the total amount of $301,588.42. 
 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer 
Commissioners  

City Administrator 
Community Development Director 

 
Finance Director 
Human Resources Director 
Information Technology Director 
Police Chief 

 
Public Services Director  

Recreation Director 

City Clerk  
Fire Chief  

 

Page 35



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Authorize purchase of one Kubota M5-091 tractor - Florida Sheriffs Association Contract. 
  

Page 36



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: December 2, 2015 

PUBLIC HEARING FROM:  Public Services 

SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS: 

OTHER: 
 

 

 

SUBJECT: PURCHASE OF KUBOTA M5-091 TRACTOR FOR THE GROUNDS 

DIVISION 

  

Request:     AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF ONE KUBOTA M5-091 TRACTOR 

THROUGH THE FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION CONTRACT IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $33,054.71 

 
 

 

SUMMARY: 

 

The purchase of the following Kubota M5-091 Tractor for the Grounds Division to replace Unit 25-0465 

a 1997 tractor.  The pricing comes from the Florida Sheriffs Association Contract Bid 15-13-0904.  The 

pricing quote for the tractor is as follows: 

 

Futch’s Tractor Depot Kubota M5-091               $33,054.71 
 

 

FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

Funding is included in the General Fund – Grounds Division FY16 Budget (001-3513-572.6400). 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Authorize the purchase of one Kubota M5-091 tractor through the Florida Sheriffs Association Contract 

in the amount of $33,054.71 
 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer 
Commissioners  

City Administrator 
Community Development Director 

 
Finance Director 
Human Resources Director 
Information Technology Director 
Police Chief 

 

Public Services Director  

Recreation Director 

City Clerk  
Fire Chief  

 

Page 37



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Department of Corrections - Inmate work squad, Contract #WS1040.  
  

Page 38



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: December 2, 2015 

PUBLIC HEARING FROM:  Public Services 

SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS: 

OTHER: 

SUBJECT: INMATE WORK SQUAD CONTRACT IV - #WS1040 

Request:  AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE CONTRACT WITH THE 

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

SUMMARY: 

On December 4, 2013, City Council approved Inmate Work Squad Contract II (#1040) for the City.  The 

contract will expire March 29, 2016. 

The Department of Corrections has established a new contract format and has requested the City execute a 

new contract for this Inmate Work Squad.  The new contract number will be #WS1040 and the contract will 

be effective for a one-year term, beginning March 30, 2016, and is subject to one (1) one-year extension, 

with the same terms and conditions.  The cost is $57,497.00 per year, the same as the prior years.  

This work squad’s primary location is at the Northwest Recreation Complex site. 

Note: A copy of the Contract is on file in the Public Services Department 

FUNDING SOURCE: 

Funding is included in the Street Improvement Fund – Inmate Division FY16 Budget 

(101-3414-541.3400). 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to sign contract #WS1040 with the Department of Corrections for an 

inmate work squad. 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer 
Commissioners  

City Administrator 
Community Development Director 

Finance Director 
Human Resources Director 
Information Technology Director 
Police Chief 

Public Services Director 

Recreation Director 

City Clerk  
Fire Chief  

Inmate contract #WS1040

Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

8. CH2M Hill, Inc. & Reiss Engineering - first extension of the contracts - Consulting Services for Professional 
Engineering 

  

Page 52



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

   x  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 2, 2015 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:   

  
 

SUBJECT:  PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

Request: APPROVE AN EXTENSION OF THE CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL 

ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH CH2M HILL, INC. AND REISS 

ENGINEERING, INC. FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

On November 5, 2014, the City Council awarded a Professional Engineering Contract to CH2M Hill, Inc. 

and Reiss Engineering, Inc., to provide the City with consulting services beginning in December, with 

two one-year extensions. 

 

The contract will be effective for one year and subject to renewal for one additional one-year extension.  

The services will be performed on an as needed basis.  This is the first extension on each contract. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the first extension of the contracts for the consulting services for Professional Engineering 

Services with CH2M Hill, Inc. and Reiss Engineering, Inc., for one year, at the same unit rate. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 53



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

9. Authorize the evaluation and public hearing for a proposed Brownfield designation.                
  

Page 54



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

  x   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 2, 2015  

       PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:                          Approval Letter 

       OTHER:                                   Brownfield Program Info. Sheet 

                         Brownfield Program Brochure 

      Map (CRA – Nursery & Industrial Properties) 

              Chamber of Commerce Letter of Support 

                                            FBA Letter of Support 

         FDEP Letter of Support  
 

SUBJECT: PROPOSED BROWNFIELD DESIGNATION 

 

Request:  CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED WITH THE EVALUATION 

AND PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER A BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT 

DESIGNATION FOR THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA.  
 

SUMMARY:  

 

The CRA should be evaluated for a Brownfield designation based on the following information; the City 

of Apopka being awarded a grant from Florida Department of Environmental Protection to conduct a Phase 

I and a Phase II Environmental Site Assessment for the city property located at 46 West Station Street.  Also 

the City of Apopka is eligible to apply for a $400,000 Community Wide Assessment Grant that targets the 

CRA -$200,000 for the removal of hazardous substances and $200,000 for Petroleum clean-up. If awarded 

the Community Wide Assessment Grant from EPA, the city could help business owners pay for Phase I and 

Phase II assessments within the CRA.  

 

What are Brownfields? 

Any property where the expansion, redevelopment or reuse is complicated by actual or perceived 

contamination. 

 

Why redevelop Brownfields? 

Cleaning up and reinvesting in Brownfield properties facilitates job growth, utilizes existing infrastructure, 

increases local tax bases, removes development pressures on undeveloped open land as well as both 

improving and protecting the environment. 

 

Florida’s Brownfields Redevelopment Program 

 Creates jobs 

 Promotes voluntary cleanup 

 Prevents the premature development of greenspace (farmland, open space and natural areas) 

 Reduces public cost for installing infrastructure in greenspaces 

 Encourages the highest and best use of blighted properties 

 Minimizes or eliminates the need for environmental enforcement or state-funded cleanup 

 Encourages community revitalization 

 

 

 

Page 55



 

Financial Incentives for Businesses-State Level 

If your property is located in a designated Brownfield area, you may be eligible for- 

 $2,500 Job Bonus Refund for each new job created by an eligible business on or abutting a site with 

a Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement (BSRA).  

 Sales Tax Credit on building materials purchased for the construction of an affordable housing 

project or mixed-use affordable housing project on or abutting a site with a BSRA. 

 State Loan Guarantees for primary lenders, up to 50% on all brownfield sites and up to 75% if the 

property is redeveloped as affordable housing, a health care facility or health care provider. 

In addition, if a business enters into a Brownfield Site Rehabilitation Agreement, they are eligible for- 

 50% Voluntary Cleanup Tax Credit (VCTC) annually on all eligible costs 

 25% Additional Voluntary Cleanup Credits on all eligible costs when cleanup is complete. 

 25% Additional Voluntary Cleanup Credits if the property is redeveloped with affordable housing, 

a health care facility or health care provider. 

 50% One-Time Voluntary Cleanup on eligible solid waste removal costs. 

 

Federal benefits that may be available for business owners and the community: 

 Site-Specific Activities Grant to DEP to conduct Phase I or II assessments and/or limited source 

removals for eligible recipients using federal grant funds. 

 National Brownfields Assessments, Revolving Loan Fund and Cleanup Grants 

o The City of Apopka is eligible to apply for a $400,000 Community Wide Assessment Grant 

that targets the CRA -$200,000 for the removal of hazardous substances and $200,000 for 

Petroleum clean-up. If awarded funds, the city could help business owners pay for Phase I 

and Phase II assessments within the CRA.  

 

 Brownfield Federal Tax Incentives that allows environmental cleanup costs to be fully deducted in 

the same year they occur. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

 N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

Authorize the City Administrator, to proceed with the evaluation and public hearing to designate all or a 

portion of the Community Redevelopment Area as a Brownfield Redevelopment Area.   
 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Page 56



 

 

 

Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection 
 

Bob Martinez Center 
2600 Blair Stone Road 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

Rick Scott 
Governor 

 
Carlos Lopez-Cantera 

Lt. Governor 
 

Jonathan P. Steverson 
Secretary

November 18, 2015 

 

 

Ms. Shakenya Harris-Jackson  

City of Apopka 

120 East Main St 

Apopka, FL  32703 

 

Dear Ms. Harris-Jackson: 

 

I am pleased to inform you that the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) has 

approved the Site Specific Activity (SSA) application you submitted on behalf of the City of 

Apopka for assistance to complete a Phase I and a Phase II Environmental Site Assessment 

(ESA) for the property located at 46 West Station Street, Apopka, Orange County (Parcel ID 09-

21-28-0196-51-260).     

 

The FDEP will complete the ESA work with Brownfields grant funding provided to FDEP by the 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) under its Section 128 State Response Program 

Cooperative Agreement.  The objective of the Phase I ESA is to evaluate the site to determine if 

there are potential recognized environmental conditions at the property and in the site vicinity.  If 

warranted, FDEP will conduct soil and groundwater sampling at the site (Phase II ESA) after the 

Phase I ESA is completed.  The work will be completed by one of FDEP’s Waste Cleanup 

contractors.  A Department representative will contact you in the upcoming weeks to schedule a 

site visit and project kickoff meeting with the City of Apopka to discuss project objectives with 

our contractor.   

 

We hope that the FDEP’s SSA assistance will help the City of Apopka with efforts to redevelop 

the property and address potential environmental conditions at the site.  If you have any questions 

regarding the SSA project, please contact me by telephone at (850) 245-8979, or by email at 

Joseph.McGarrity@dep.state.fl.us. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Joseph McGarrity, Environmental Consultant 

Brownfields and DoD Partnership Section 

 

cc:       George Houston, FDEP Central District 

            Margret Olsen, USEPA Region  

KW  

Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



1ST

PA
RK

13TH

8TH

6TH

OR
AN

GE

CE
NT

RA
L

2ND

LA
KE

OAK

3RD

7TH

VOTAW

10TH

4TH

HA
WT

HO
RN

E

MAIN

HI
GH

LA
ND

MONROE

MAGNOLIA

MC
GE

E

CH
RI

ST
IAN

A

TIL
DE

N

CE
RV

ID
AE

AL
AB

AM
A

APOPKA

RO
BI

NS
ON

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON

M A BOARD

5TH

MASON

15TH

12TH

11TH

MYRTLE

9TH
HA

AS

G H WASHINGTON

EDISTO

CL
AR

CO
NA

ED
GE

WO
OD

MICHAEL GLADDEN

STATION

MI
DL

AN
D

GE
OR

GI
A

LOVELL

14TH

DAVIS

SHARP

MA
NT

IS

SEMORAN

KE
E

GO
OD

RI
CH

RAND

FA
YE

TT
E

LIT
TL

E

SHORT

OLD APOPKA

RH
AP

SO
DY

FO
RE

ST

WOODLANE

WHITETAIL

CO
MF

OR
T

SO
NGBIR

D

OA
KL

AN
D

LO
U 

AN
N

CA
RN

AT
IO

N

RA
MB

LIN
G

OLD DIXIE

OAK RUN

VINE

ELLA J GILMORE ST

DERBY

SITKA

DREAM LAKE

KIN
NE

Y

BL
AC

KT
AIL

FALLING OAK

KA
NA

WH
A

PALMETTO

HA
WT

HO
RN

E

12TH

2ND

10TH

11TH

FO
RE

ST

9TH

ORANGE

SHORT

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON

LAKE

12TH

11TH

ELLA J GILMORE ST

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON

MICHAEL GLADDEN

LA
KE

FA
YE

TT
E

11TH

5TH

STATION

1ST

15TH

5TH

10TH

OLD APOPKA

MC
GE

E

CH
RI

ST
IAN

A

9TH

AL
AB

AM
A

TIL
DE

N

15TH

10TH

ORANGE

5TH

7TH

GEORGIA

HI
GH

LA
ND

MAGNOLIA

2ND

15TH15TH

9TH

MC
GE

E

15TH

CH
RI

ST
IAN

A

5TH

11TH

OAK

MYRTLE

!
0 0.08 0.16 0.24 0.320.04

Miles

Source: City of Apopka and 
Orange County Property Appaiser
Note: This map was compiled from
 the Geographic Information Service 
and does not reflect an actual survey.
The CIty of Apopka does not assume 
responsibilities for errors or omissions 
contained hereon.

1
2

3

4

5

6 7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15

16

17
18

19

20 21

22
23

24

25
26

27 28

29

30

31

32 33

34
35

36
37

38

39
40

41

42
44 434546

Legend
Community Redevelopment Area
Industrial Properties
Vacant Industrial Properties
Nursery Properties
Major Streets
City Boundary
JPA Boundary

Apopka City Hall
Community Development Depart.
120 E. Main St.
PO Box 1229, Apopka, Florida 32704
407.703.1739
www.apopka.net

 

updated August 2015

City of Apopka 
CRA

Nursery & 
Industrial Properties

Page 61



Page 62



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
November 20, 2015

Laurel Lockett Shakenya Harris-Jackson, Ed.D. Via E-Mail: sjackson@apopka.net
President Grants &Neighborhood Services Coordinator
Carlton Fields Jorden Burt, City Of Apopka -Apopka, FL
P.A, 120 East Main Street
Michael Sznapstajler Apopka, FL 32703 USA
President-Elect
Cobb Cole Dear Doctor Harris-Jackson:

Tom Lewis
Secretary On behalf of the Florida Brownfields Association ("FBA"), please accept this letter of support for
Cardno the submittal of a Community Wide Assessment Grant application to the United States

Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") by the City of Apopka, Florida (the "City").
Jason Lichtstein
Treasurer
Akerman The FBA is a non- rofit, volunteer, service or anization dedicated to advancin the cleanu antlp g g p

redevelopment of Brownfields in Florida. Brownfields are sites for which their expansion,
Andy Lawn redevelopment, or reuse may be complicated by actual or perceived contamination. Working in
HSW Engineering cooperation with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection and the EPA, the FBA is a

Janet Peterson group of environmental stakeholders and professionals who provide information, assistance, and

Bureau Veritas North redevelopment strategies regarding Brownfieltls to communities and the public in the interest of
America, mc. cleaning up and redeveloping contaminated properties and revitalizing areas.

Ken Pinnix We applaud the City's efforts in seeking revitalization and redevelopment in the State of Florida
PTW Associates

and hope you will give every possible consideration to its application for an EPA Community Wide
Belinda Richard Assessment Grant. We look forward to assisting the City upon its successful grant award. The
Terracon FBA through its membership will provide technical assistance to the City, and will assist with

public outreach and marketing by participating in public meetings or assisting with educational
Nadia Locke
Past President, FBA presentations. Further, our membership is willing to serve on advisory boards or committees that

E sciences. inc. are developed in support of this grant.

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding the FBA's support of the City's Community
Wide Assessment Grant proposal, please do not hesitate to contact me at (813) 229-4139 or
Ilockett@cfjblaw.com.

Regard , ~'~ ~~~
~_

-/
Laurel L etk, Esq.
President ~

Page 63



 

 

 

Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection 
 

Bob Martinez Center 
2600 Blair Stone Road 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

Rick Scott 
Governor 

 
Carlos Lopez-Cantera 

Lt. Governor 
 

Jonathan P. Steverson 
Secretary

 

November 24, 2015 

 

 

Cindy J. Nolan 

Brownfields Program 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

61 Forsyth St., S.W. 

Atlanta, GA 30303-8960 

  

 

Dear Ms. Nolan: 

 

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection (Department) acknowledges and supports 

the City of Apopka’s Brownfields grant application for a Community Wide Hazardous Substance 

and Petroleum or Petroleum Products Assessment Grant.  The Department understands that this 

application has been prepared in accordance with EPA’s guidance document EPA-OSWER-

OBLR-15-04, titled “Guidelines for Brownfields Assessment Grants”.  This letter of 

acknowledgement addresses the requirement for a “Letter from the State or Tribal Environmental 

Authority”, described in SECTION III.C.2.  EPA Brownfields grant funding will strengthen 

cleanup and redevelopment efforts in the City of Apopka.  This federal grant effort also supports 

Florida’s Brownfields Redevelopment Act and the Department’s role in administration of site 

rehabilitation of contaminated sites. 

 

The Department encourages EPA grant recipients to use the incentives and resources available 

through Florida’s Brownfields Redevelopment Program with EPA grant funding to enhance the 

success of their brownfields project.  The Department recommends that the City of Apopka 

consider including Brownfields sites or areas that could potentially receive federal funding in a 

state-designated brownfield area.  The City of Apopka is also encouraged to contact George 

Houston II, P.G., the Central District Brownfields Coordinator, at (407) 897- 4322, to learn more 

about the Florida Brownfields Redevelopment Program.   

 

Sincerely, 

 
 

Kimberly A. Walker, Environmental Administrator 

DoD & Brownfields Partnership 

 

 

Page 64



Ms. Cindy J. Nolan 

Page 2 

November 24, 2015 

 

 

KW/jc 

 

cc: 

 

Shakenya Jackson, Grants & Neighborhood Services Coordinator, City of Apopka, 
(SJackson@apopka.net)  

   George Houston II, P.G., FDEP Central District Brownfields Coordinator, 

   (George.Houston@dep.state.fl.us)  
Margaret Olson, EPA Region 4 Florida Grants Coordinator, (Olson.Margaret@epa.gov) 

 

Page 65



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Ordinance 2459 – Second Reading - Annexation      David Moon  
  

Page 66



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                          ________                                     __ 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 2, 2015 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 3 

X OTHER: Annexation   Ordinance No. 2459 
    Vicinity Map 

                                          ________                                     __ 
SUBJECT:   2015 ANNEXATION - CYCLE NO. 3 
 
Request:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NUMBER: 2459 - 

JTD LAND AT ROGERS RD., LLC; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 
READING AND ADOPTION. 

                                          ________                                     __ 
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:   JTD Land at Rogers Rd., LLC 
 
LOCATION:   2303 Rogers Road 
     
LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
TRACT SIZE:   30.52 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future 
Land Use and Zoning designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will 
occur at a later date, and through additional action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the 
first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on October 16, 2015 and 
November 4, 2015. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 23, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
October 30, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 6, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 13, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 20, 2015 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 18, 2015 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
December 2, 2015 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   Page 67



CITY COUNCIL –  DECEMBER 2, 2015 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #3  
PAGE 2 
 

 

                                          ________                                     __ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2015 Annexation Cycle #3. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 18, 2015, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2459 and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 2, 2015. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2459. 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF APOPKA 

2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 
TOTAL ACRES:  42.07 +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE No.s.: 2459-2463 

  Adopted this 2th day of December, 2015 
 

Page 1 

 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2459 1 JTD Land at Rogers Rd., LLC 2303 Rogers Road 
29-20-28-0000-00-004 
29-20-28-0000-00-026 

30.52 Vacant Land 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2460 2 
Huy Tran 

Hai Anh Nguyen 
904 Schopke Lester Road 06-21-28-7172-14-071 4.42 

SFR 
 

Low Density Residential 
Max. 4du/ac 

2461 3 Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 300 West 2nd Street 09-21-28-0868-01-240 0.42 SFR 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2462 4 Debra Evans Cargil 
202 South Hawthorne 

Avenue 
09-21-28-0868-01-230 0.32 SFR 

Low Medium Density 
Residential 

Max. 10du/ac 

2463 5 Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC Peterson Road 07-21-28-0000-00-064 1.47 Vacant Land Rural 1du/10 Acres 

2465 6 Jerry Kirkland 
Lannette Kirkland 

3707 Rock Springs Road 
22-20-28-0000-00-005 

4.92 SFR 
Rural 1du/5 Acres 

    TOTAL ACRES 37.15   

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2015\Cycle 3 

 

 

Page 69



ORDINANCE NO. 2459 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 
TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO FLORIDA 
STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND 
BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY JTD LAND AT ROGERS 
RD., LLC, LOCATED AT 2303 ROGERS ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS 
TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  JTD Land At Rogers Rd., LLC, owners thereof, have 

petitioned the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the 

properties located at 2303 Rogers Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida 

provide that a municipal corporation may annex property into its 

corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing and 

adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous 

of annexing and redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include 

the subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being situated 

in Orange County, Florida, totaling 30.52 +/- acres, and graphically 

depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed into the City of 

Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of 

Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

N3/4 OF NW1/4 OF SW1/4 (LESS BEG 12 FT N OF SW COR OF N3/4 OF 

NW1/4 OF SW1/4 SELY TO HALFWAY POINT BETWEEN E LINE AND W LINE 

W TO W LINE OF N 3/4 OF NW1/4 OF SW1/4 N 12 FT TO POB & LESS 

W 30 FT FOR RD) SEC 29-20-28  

Containing: 30.43 Acres and; 

 

BEG AT NE COR OF S1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SW1/4 TH W TO HALFWAY POINT 

BETWEEN E LINE AND W LINE SELY TO E LINE OF S1/4 OF NW1/4 OF 

SW1/4 TH N 12 FT TO POB IN SEC 29-20-28 

Contains: 0.09 +/- Acres 

 

Combined Acreage: 30.52 

 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of 

Apopka, Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein 

described and annexed.
Page 70



 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2459 

PAGE 2  

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in accordance 

with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants 

of the land herein described shall be liable for all debts and 

obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances 

and regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or 

subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or 

unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section 

or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and 

adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this 

ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, 

Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of 

State of the State of Florida.  
 
 

           Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: October 23, 2015; October 30, 2015; 

November 6, 2015; November 13, 2015; 

November, 20, 2015 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: November 18, 2015 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:     December 2, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 71



 

ANNEXATION 

JTD LAND AT ROGERS RD., LLC 

2303 ROGERS ROAD 

             

     

         Exhibit “A”                  

         Ord. # 2459 

         Parcel ID: 29-20-28-0000-00-004 

   29-20-28-0000-00-026    

 Total Acres: 30.52 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

Page 72



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Ordinance 2460 – Second Reading - Annexation      David Moon  
  

Page 73



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                          ________                                     __ 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 2, 2015 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 3 

X OTHER: Annexation   Ordinance No. 2460 
    Vicinity Map 

                                        ________                                     __ 
SUBJECT:   2015 ANNEXATION - CYCLE NO. 3 
 
Request:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NUMBER: 2460 – 

HUY TRAN AND HAI ANH NGUYEN AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 
READING AND ADOPTION. 

                                          ________                                     __ 
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:   Huy Tran and Hai Anh Nguyen 
 
LOCATION:   904 Schopke Lester Road 
     
LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
TRACT SIZE:   4.42 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future 
Land Use and Zoning designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will 
occur at a later date, and through additional action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the 
first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on October 16, 2015 and 
November 4, 2015. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 23, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
October 30, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 6, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 13, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 20, 2015 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 18, 2015 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
December 2, 2015 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   Page 74



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #3  
PAGE 2 
 

 

                                          ________                                     __ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2015 Annexation Cycle #3. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 18, 2015, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2460 and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 2, 2015. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2460. 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF APOPKA 

2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 
TOTAL ACRES:  42.07 +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE No.s.: 2459-2463 

  Adopted this 2th day of December, 2015 
 

Page 1 

 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2459 1 JTD Land at Rogers Rd., LLC 2303 Rogers Road 
29-20-28-0000-00-004 
29-20-28-0000-00-026 

30.52 Vacant Land 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2460 2 
Huy Tran 

Hai Anh Nguyen 
904 Schopke Lester Road 06-21-28-7172-14-071 4.42 

SFR 
 

Low Density Residential 
Max. 4du/ac 

2461 3 Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 300 West 2nd Street 09-21-28-0868-01-240 0.42 SFR 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2462 4 Debra Evans Cargil 
202 South Hawthorne 

Avenue 
09-21-28-0868-01-230 0.32 SFR 

Low Medium Density 
Residential 

Max. 10du/ac 

2463 5 Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC Peterson Road 07-21-28-0000-00-064 1.47 Vacant Land Rural 1du/10 Acres 

2465 6 Jerry Kirkland 
Lannette Kirkland 

3707 Rock Springs Road 
22-20-28-0000-00-005 

4.92 SFR 
Rural 1du/5 Acres 

    TOTAL ACRES 37.15   

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2015\Cycle 3 

 

 

Page 76



ORDINANCE NO. 2460 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY HUY TRAN AND HAI ANH NGUYEN, LOCATED AT 904 

SCHOPKE LESTER ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  Huy Tran and Hai Anh Nguyen owners thereof, have 

petitioned the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex 

the property located at 904 Schopke Lester Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida 

provide that a municipal corporation may annex property into its 

corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing 

and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is 

desirous of annexing and redefining the boundaries of the municipality 

to include the subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being 

situated in Orange County, Florida, totaling 4.42 +/- acres, and 

graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed 

into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation 

provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable 

laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

8718/4708 INC LEGAL DESC MAP OF PLYMOUTH B/17 LOT 7 & ALL 

OF SAID LOT LOCATED IN WATERS OF LAKE STANDISH & THE NLY 

20 FT OF ABANDONED PLATTED R/W LYING BETWEEN SAID LOT 7 

AND LOT 8 SAID R/W NOT OFFICIALLY VACATED( LESS N 110 FT 

THEREOF) BLK N    Contains: 4.42 +/- Acres 

 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein 

described and annexed. 
 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in 

accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

Page 77



 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2460 

PAGE 2  

 

  

SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants 

of the land herein described shall be liable for all debts and 

obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or 

subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or 

unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a 

section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage 

and adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file 

this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange 

County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the 

Department of State of the State of Florida.  
 
 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: October 23, 2015; October 30, 2015; 

November 6, 2015; November 13, 2015; 

November, 20, 2015 
 

 

 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: November 18, 2015 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:     December 2, 2015 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

Page 78



 

ANNEXATION 

HUY TRAN AND HAI ANH NGUYEN 

904 SCHOPKE LESTER ROAD 

             

     

              

 

Exhibit “A” 

Ord. # 2460 

Parcel ID: 06-21-28-7172-14-071 

       

 Total Acres: 4.42 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

Page 79



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Ordinance 2461 – Second Reading - Annexation      David Moon  
  

Page 80



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                           ________                                    __ 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 2, 2015 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 3 

X OTHER: Annexation   Ordinance No. 2461 
    Vicinity Map 

                                           ________                                    __ 
SUBJECT:   2015 ANNEXATION - CYCLE NO. 3 
 
Request:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NUMBER: 2461 – 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC, AND HOLD OVER FOR 
SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. 

                                           ________                                    __ 
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:   Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 
 
LOCATION:   300 West 2nd Street 
     
LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.42 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS 
The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning designations.  
The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through additional 
action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  
The City provided notification to the County on October 16, 2015 and November 4, 2015. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 23, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
October 30, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 6, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 13, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 20, 2015 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 18, 2015 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
December 2, 2015 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 

 

                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   
 
 Page 81



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #3  
PAGE 2 
 

 

                                          ________                                     __ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2015 Annexation Cycle #3. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 18, 2015, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2461 and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 2, 2015. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2461. 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF APOPKA 

2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 
TOTAL ACRES:  42.07 +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE No.s.: 2459-2463 

  Adopted this 2th day of December, 2015 
 

Page 1 

 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2459 1 JTD Land at Rogers Rd., LLC 2303 Rogers Road 
29-20-28-0000-00-004 
29-20-28-0000-00-026 

30.52 Vacant Land 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2460 2 
Huy Tran 

Hai Anh Nguyen 
904 Schopke Lester Road 06-21-28-7172-14-071 4.42 

SFR 
 

Low Density Residential 
Max. 4du/ac 

2461 3 Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 300 West 2nd Street 09-21-28-0868-01-240 0.42 SFR 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2462 4 Debra Evans Cargil 
202 South Hawthorne 

Avenue 
09-21-28-0868-01-230 0.32 SFR 

Low Medium Density 
Residential 

Max. 10du/ac 

2463 5 Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC Peterson Road 07-21-28-0000-00-064 1.47 Vacant Land Rural 1du/10 Acres 

2465 6 Jerry Kirkland 
Lannette Kirkland 

3707 Rock Springs Road 
22-20-28-0000-00-005 

4.92 SFR 
Rural 1du/5 Acres 

    TOTAL ACRES 37.15   

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2015\Cycle 3 

 

 

Page 83



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2461 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 

TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO 

FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS 

SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC, LOCATED AT 300 WEST 

2ND STREET; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC owners thereof, 

have petitioned the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

annex the property located at 300 West 2nd Street; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida 

provide that a municipal corporation may annex property into its 

corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing 

and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is 

desirous of annexing and redefining the boundaries of the municipality 

to include the subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being 

situated in Orange County, Florida, totaling 0.42 +/- acres, and 

graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed 

into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation 

provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable 

laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

BRADSHAW AND THOMPSONS ADDITION TO APOPKA CITY B/25 LOT 

24 BLK A (LESS R/W) Contain: 0.42 +/- Acres 

 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein 

described and annexed. 

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in 

accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants 

of the land herein described shall be liable for all debts and 

obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

Page 84



 

 

 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2461 

PAGE 2  

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or 

subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or 

unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a 

section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage 

and adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file 

this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange 

County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the 

Department of State of the State of Florida.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                           

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: October 23, 2015; October 30, 2015; 

November 6, 2015; November 13, 2015; 

November, 20, 2015 
         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: November 18, 2015 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:     December 2, 2015 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

Page 85



 

 

ANNEXATION 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC 

300 WEST 2ND STREET 

             

     

                Exhibit “A”                  

                Ord. # 2461 

                Parcel ID: 09-21-28-0868-01-240 

       

 Total Acres: 0.42 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

Page 86



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Ordinance 2462 – Second Reading - Annexation      David Moon  
  

Page 87



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                          ________                                     __ 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 2, 2015 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 3 

X OTHER: Annexation   Ordinance No. 2462 
    Vicinity Map 

                                          ________                                     __ 
SUBJECT:   2015 ANNEXATION - CYCLE NO. 3 
 
Request:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NUMBER: 2462 – 

DEBRA EVANS CARGIL AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING 
AND ADOPTION. 

                                          ________                                     __ 
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:   Debra Evans Cargil 
 
LOCATION:   202 South Hawthorne Avenue 
     
LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.32 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future 
Land Use and Zoning designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will 
occur at a later date, and through additional action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the 
first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on October 16, 2015 and 
November 4, 2015. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 23, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
October 30, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 6, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 13, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 20, 2015 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 18, 2015 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
December 2, 2015 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   Page 88



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #3  
PAGE 2 
 

 

                                          ________                                     __ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2015 Annexation Cycle #3. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 18, 2015, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2462 and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 2, 2015. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2462. 
 
 
 
 

Page 89



EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF APOPKA 

2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 
TOTAL ACRES:  42.07 +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE No.s.: 2459-2463 

  Adopted this 2th day of December, 2015 
 

Page 1 

 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2459 1 JTD Land at Rogers Rd., LLC 2303 Rogers Road 
29-20-28-0000-00-004 
29-20-28-0000-00-026 

30.52 Vacant Land 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2460 2 
Huy Tran 

Hai Anh Nguyen 
904 Schopke Lester Road 06-21-28-7172-14-071 4.42 

SFR 
 

Low Density Residential 
Max. 4du/ac 

2461 3 Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 300 West 2nd Street 09-21-28-0868-01-240 0.42 SFR 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2462 4 Debra Evans Cargil 
202 South Hawthorne 

Avenue 
09-21-28-0868-01-230 0.32 SFR 

Low Medium Density 
Residential 

Max. 10du/ac 

2463 5 Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC Peterson Road 07-21-28-0000-00-064 1.47 Vacant Land Rural 1du/10 Acres 

2465 6 Jerry Kirkland 
Lannette Kirkland 

3707 Rock Springs Road 
22-20-28-0000-00-005 

4.92 SFR 
Rural 1du/5 Acres 

    TOTAL ACRES 37.15   

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2015\Cycle 3 

 

 

Page 90



ORDINANCE NO. 2462 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 
TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO 
FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS 
SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY DEBRA 
EVANS CARGIL, LOCATED AT 202 SOUTH HAWTHORNE AVENUE; 
PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  Debra Evans Cargil owners thereof, have petitioned the 

City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property 

located at 202 South Hawthorne Avenue; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida 

provide that a municipal corporation may annex property into its 

corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing 

and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is 

desirous of annexing and redefining the boundaries of the municipality 

to include the subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being 

situated in Orange County, Florida, totaling 0.32 +/- acres, and 

graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed 

into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation 

provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable 

laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

BRADSHAW AND THOMPSONS ADDITION TO APOPKA CITY B/25 LOT 

23 (LESS RR R/W) BLK A    

Contains: 0.32 +/- Acres 

 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein 

described and annexed. 

 

 SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in 

accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants 

of the land herein described shall be liable for all debts and 

obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

Page 91



 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2462 

PAGE 2  

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or 

subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or 

unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a 

section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage 

and adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file 

this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange 

County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the 

Department of State of the State of Florida.  
 
 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: October 23, 2015; October 30, 

2015; November 6, 2015; November 

13, 2015; November, 20, 2015 

      

   
        

 

 

 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: November 18, 2015 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:     December 2, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

Page 92



 

ANNEXATION 

DEBRA EVANS CARGIL 

202 SOUTH HAWTHORNE AVENUE 

             

     

             

         Exhibit “A” 

         Ord. # 2462 

         Parcel ID: 09-21-28-0868-01-230 

       

 Total Acres: 0.32 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

Page 93



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Ordinance 2463 – Second Reading - Annexation      David Moon  
  

Page 94



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                           _______                                     __ 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 2, 2015 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 3 

X OTHER: Annexation   Ordinance No. 2463 
    Vicinity Map 

                                          _______                                      __ 
SUBJECT:   2015 ANNEXATION - CYCLE NO. 3 
 
Request:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NUMBER: 2463 – 

APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS, LLC, AND HOLD OVER FOR 
SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. 

                                           _______                                     __ 
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:   Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC 
 
LOCATION:   South of Peterson Road and West of Binion Road  
    (PID: 07-21-28-0000-00-064) 
     
LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
TRACT SIZE:   1.47 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS 
The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning designations.  
The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through additional 
action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  
The City provided notification to the County on October 16, 2015 and November 4, 2015. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 23, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
October 30, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 6, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 13, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 20, 2015 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 18, 2015 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
December 2, 2015 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 

 

                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   
 
 Page 95



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #3  
PAGE 2 
 

 

                                          ________                                     __ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2015 Annexation Cycle #3. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 18, 2015, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2463 and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 2, 2015. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2463. 
 
 
 
 

Page 96



EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF APOPKA 

2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 
TOTAL ACRES:  42.07 +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE No.s.: 2459-2463 

  Adopted this 2th day of December, 2015 
 

Page 1 

 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2459 1 JTD Land at Rogers Rd., LLC 2303 Rogers Road 
29-20-28-0000-00-004 
29-20-28-0000-00-026 

30.52 Vacant Land 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2460 2 
Huy Tran 

Hai Anh Nguyen 
904 Schopke Lester Road 06-21-28-7172-14-071 4.42 

SFR 
 

Low Density Residential 
Max. 4du/ac 

2461 3 Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 300 West 2nd Street 09-21-28-0868-01-240 0.42 SFR 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2462 4 Debra Evans Cargil 
202 South Hawthorne 

Avenue 
09-21-28-0868-01-230 0.32 SFR 

Low Medium Density 
Residential 

Max. 10du/ac 

2463 5 Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC Peterson Road 07-21-28-0000-00-064 1.47 Vacant Land Rural 1du/10 Acres 

2465 6 Jerry Kirkland 
Lannette Kirkland 

3707 Rock Springs Road 
22-20-28-0000-00-005 

4.92 SFR 
Rural 1du/5 Acres 

    TOTAL ACRES 37.15   

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2015\Cycle 3 

 

 

Page 97



ORDINANCE NO. 2463 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 

TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO 

FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS 

SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY 

APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS, LLC, LOCATED SOUTH OF 

PETERSON ROAD AND WEST OF BINION ROAD; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC, owners thereof, 

have petitioned the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

annex the property located south of Peterson Road and west of Binion 

Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida 

provide that a municipal corporation may annex property into its 

corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing 

and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is 

desirous of annexing and redefining the boundaries of the municipality 

to include the subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being 

situated in Orange County, Florida, totaling 1.47 +/- acres, and 

graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed 

into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation 

provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable 

laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

THE WEST 50 FT OF THE EAST 1/2 OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE NE 

1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 SEC 07-21-28 LESS THE NORTH 30 FT FOR 

R/W 

     Contains: 1.47 +/- Acres 

 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein 

described and annexed. 

 

 SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in 

accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

Page 98



 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2462 

PAGE 2  

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants 

of the land herein described shall be liable for all debts and 

obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or 

subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or 

unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a 

section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage 

and adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file 

this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange 

County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the 

Department of State of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: October 23, 2015; October 30, 2015; 

November 6, 2015; November 13, 2015; 

November, 20, 2015 
         

 

READ FIRST TIME: November 18, 2015 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:     December 2, 2015 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

Page 99



 

ANNEXATION 

APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS, LLC 

PETERSON ROAD 

             

     

             

         Exhibit “A”  

         Ord. # 2463   

         Parcel ID: 07-21-28-0000-00-064 

       

 Total Acres: 1.47 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

Page 100



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Ordinance 2464 - Second Reading - Amending Chapter 46 of the Code of Ordinances           Brian Bowman 
  

Page 101



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

     CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  December 2, 2015 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:          Fire Department 

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:    ___________________ 

  X  OTHER:  Ordinance 

  
 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2464 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF APOPKA, CHAPTER 46 “FIRE PREVENTION AND 

PROTECTION”, ARTICLE III, “FIRE CODES AND STANDARDS”, SECTION 

46-76 TO ADOPT THE FLORIDA FIRE PREVENTION CODE AND THE LIFE 

SAFETY CODE; AMENDING SECTION 46-78, THE FLORIDA FIRE 

PREVENTION CODE, CHAPTER 13, “FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS” 

PARAGRAPH 13.3.1.2, “GENERAL”; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

CITY CLERK, FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Request: ACCEPT THE SECOND READING AND ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 2464. 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

Pursuant to Chapter 166 of the Florida Statutes, the State Fire Marshall has adopted a statewide fire safety 

code.  The law establishing the code allows for local amendments to the unified standards.  Ordinance 

No. 2464 adopts the Florida Fire Prevention Code and the Life Safety Code, and provides for a local 

amendment which continues the City’s policy of requiring automatic sprinklers be installed in buildings 

that are 7,500 square feet or more in gross area, or two stories or more in height, and be maintained in full 

operating condition to comply with the standards listed in the Florida Fire Prevention Code, 5
th

 Edition. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2464.  

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

Page 102



ORDINANCE NO. 2464 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF APOPKA, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 46, “FIRE 
PREVENTION AND PROTECTION” OF THE APOPKA 
MUNICIPAL CODE, BY AMENDING ARTICLE III, “FIRE 
CODES AND STANDARDS”, SECTION 46-76 TO ADOPT 
THE FLORIDA FIRE PREVENTION CODE (NFPA 1) AND 
THE LIFE SAFETY CODE (NFPA 101) BY REFERENCE; 
AMENDING SECTION 46-78, THE FLORIDA FIRE 
PREVENTION CODE, CHAPTER 13, “FIRE PROTECTION 
SYSTEMS”, PARAGRAPH 13.3.1.2, “GENERAL”; 
PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
Whereas, Chapter 166, F.S., empowers the City of Apopka to adopt regulations 

which furthers a municipal purpose; and 
 
Whereas, the City of Apopka has adopted regulations relative to Fire Prevention 

and Protection, Chapter 46 of the Apopka Municipal Code, in the interest of protecting 
the general welfare of its citizens; and 

 
Whereas, the State Fire Marshal has, pursuant to Chapter 633.0215 F.S., has 

adopted the “Florida Fire Prevention Code” which shall be applicable to all local 
governments throughout the State; and 

 
Whereas, Chapter 633.0215 F.S. allows for local government to adopt local 

amendments to the “Florida Fire Prevention Code”, provided such amendment does not 
provide a lesser degree of life safety and meets certain criteria of Chapter 633.0215 
F.S.; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, in light of the above 

recitals, has determined that the continued protection of the health, safety and welfare 
of its citizens requires that Chapter 46 of the Apopka Code of Ordinances be amended. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 
 
SECTION I.  That Chapter 46. Fire Prevention and Protection, Article III. Fire 

Codes and Standards, Division 1.  Generally, of the Apopka Municipal Code be 
amended to read as follows: 

 
 
 

Page 103



ARTICLE III. FIRE CODES AND STANDARDS 
 

DIVISION 1. GENERALLY 
 
Sec. 46-76. Standards adopted pursuant to Florida Statutes 633.025 (Minimum 
Fire Safety Standards). 
 

(a) The following codes are hereby adopted:  The Florida Fire Prevention 
Code (NFPA 1) and the Life Safety Code (NFPA 101) as adopted by the 
State Fire Marshall pursuant to Chapter 633.0215 are hereby adopted by 
reference as if set out at length herein, except NFPA 1 Section 7-3.1.1 
13.3.1.2. Section 7-3.1.1 13.3.1.2 shall be adopted as modified in Section 
46-78 of this chapter. 

 
(b) Any person who shall violate any provisions of the standards adopted in 

subsection (a) of this section shall be subject to enforcement procedures 
as provided for in this code. 

 
If there shall be any conflict between the provisions of the standards adopted 
in subsection (a) of this section and the provisions of this chapter, the 
provisions of this chapter will prevail as permitted by State law. 
 
Section 46-78. Amendment to Section 7-3.1 13.3.1.2 of the Florida Fire 
Prevention Code (NFPA 1) (2000 2012). 
 
The Florida Fire Prevention Code (NFPA 1), Chapter 7 13, “Fire Protection 
Systems”, Section 13.3.1.2 – “General”, is hereby amended and adopted as 
follows: 
 
7-3.3.3 13.3.1.2 Automatic sprinklers shall be installed and maintained in full 
operating condition, and comply with the standards listed in Chapter 32 the  
Florida Fire Prevention Code, 5th Edition.  All new assembly, mercantile, 
industrial, educational, storage, business, occupancies including commercial 
structures, apartments, and timesharing arrangements, that are 7,500 square 
feet or more in gross area, or two stories or more in height, shall be protected 
throughout by an approved automatic sprinkler system in accordance with 
NFPA 13, Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems; NFPA 13R, 
Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in Residential Occupancies 
up to and including Four Stories in Height; NFPA 13D, Standard for the 
Installation of Sprinkler Systems in One- and Two-Family Dwellings and 
Manufactured Homes, as appropriate. 
 
 
Exception No. 1:  Sections of the Florida Fire Prevention Code or the Life Safety Code 
adopted in 46-76 that require the installation of an automatic sprinkler system in 
occupancies or areas less that 7500 sq. ft. shall apply and shall not be considered in 
conflict with the amended Section 7-3.1.1 13.3.1.2. 

Page 104



Secs. 46-79 – 46-90. Reserved. 
 
 
 SECTION II.  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of 
this ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful or unconstitutional, it shall not be 
held to invalidate or impair the validity, force, or effect of any other section or 
portion of a section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 
 
 SECTION III. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
 SECTION IV.  That the City Clerk shall transmit a copy of this ordinance to 
the Florida Building Commission and to the State Fire Marshal within 30 days 
of final adoption. 
 
 SECTION V.  This ordinance shall take effect upon adoption. 
 
 
 
      FIRST READING:  November 18, 2015 
 
      SECOND READING 
           AND ADOPTION: December 2, 2015 
 
 
            
       _______________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  November 20, 2015 

Page 105



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Ordinance 2465 – Second Reading - Annexation      David Moon 
  

Page 106



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                           ________                                     _ 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: December 2, 2015 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 3 

X OTHER: Annexation   Ordinance No. 2465 
    Vicinity Map 

                                           ________                                     _ 
 
SUBJECT:   2015 ANNEXATION - CYCLE NO. 3 
 
Request:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NUMBER: 2465 – 

JERRY KIRKLAND AND LANNETTE KIRKLAND AND HOLD OVER 
FOR SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. 

                                           ________                                     _ 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:   Jerry Kirkland and Lannette Kirkland 
 
LOCATION:   3707 Rock Springs Road 
     
LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
TRACT SIZE:   4.92 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future 
Land Use and Zoning designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will 
occur at a later date, and through additional action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the 
first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on November 4, 2015. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
November 6, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 13, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 20, 2015 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 18, 2015 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
December 2, 2015 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   
 Page 107



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #3  
PAGE 2 
 

 

                                           ________                                     _ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2015 Annexation Cycle #3. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 18, 2015, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2465 and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 2, 2015. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2465. 
 
 
 
 

Page 108



EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF APOPKA 

2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 3 
TOTAL ACRES:  42.07 +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE No.s.: 2459-2463 

  Adopted this 2th day of December, 2015 
 

Page 1 

 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2459 1 JTD Land at Rogers Rd., LLC 2303 Rogers Road 
29-20-28-0000-00-004 
29-20-28-0000-00-026 

30.52 Vacant Land 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2460 2 
Huy Tran 

Hai Anh Nguyen 
904 Schopke Lester Road 06-21-28-7172-14-071 4.42 

SFR 
 

Low Density Residential 
Max. 4du/ac 

2461 3 Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 300 West 2nd Street 09-21-28-0868-01-240 0.42 SFR 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2462 4 Debra Evans Cargil 
202 South Hawthorne 

Avenue 
09-21-28-0868-01-230 0.32 SFR 

Low Medium Density 
Residential 

Max. 10du/ac 

2463 5 Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC Peterson Road 07-21-28-0000-00-064 1.47 Vacant Land Rural 1du/10 Acres 

2465 6 Jerry Kirkland 
Lannette Kirkland 

3707 Rock Springs Road 
22-20-28-0000-00-005 

4.92 SFR 
Rural 1du/5 Acres 

    TOTAL ACRES 37.15   

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2015\Cycle 3 

 

 

Page 109



ORDINANCE NO. 2465 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 
TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO 
FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS 
SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY JERRY 
KIRKLAND AND LANNETTE KIRKLAND, LOCATED AT 3707 ROCK 
SPRINGS ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS,  Jerry Kirkland and Lannette Kirkland owners thereof, 

have petitioned the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

annex the property located at 3707 Rock Springs Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida 

provide that a municipal corporation may annex property into its 

corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing 

and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is 

desirous of annexing and redefining the boundaries of the municipality 

to include the subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being 

situated in Orange County, Florida, totaling 4.92 +/- acres, and 

graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed 

into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation 

provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable 

laws: 

 

Legal Description: 

 

S1/4 OF S1/2 OF NW1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 22-20-28 (LESS W 30 

FT RD) 

     Contains: 4.92 +/- Acres 

 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein 

described and annexed.

 

 SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in 

accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants 

of the land herein described shall be liable for all debts and 

obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

Page 110



 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2465 

PAGE 2 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or 

subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or 

unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a 

section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage 

and adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file 

this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange 

County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the 

Department of State of the State of Florida.  
 
 

            

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: October 23, 2015; October 30, 2015; 

November 6, 2015; November 13, 2015; 

November, 20, 2015 

                                                            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: November 18, 2015 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:     December 2, 2015 

 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

Page 111



 

 

ANNEXATION 

JERRY AND LANNETTE KIRKLAND 

3707 ROCK SPRINGS ROAD 

             

     

               Exhibit “A”                  

               Ord. # 2465 

               Parcel ID: 22-20-28-0000-00-005 

       

 Total Acres: 4.92 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

Page 112



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

8. Ordinance 2467 – First Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment David Moon 
  

Page 113



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  December 2, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance         Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Uses Map 
           Ordinance No. 2467 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2467 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - SMALL SCALE - 
FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC 

     
Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2467 – TECHNOLOGY 

PROPERTY LLC FROM “COUNTY” RURAL SETTLEMENT (0-1 DU/5 
AC) TO “CITY” COMMERCIAL (MAX FAR 0.25); AND HOLD OVER 
FOR SECOND READING & ADOPTION. (PARCEL ID #S: 27-21-28-6024-
00-005; -006; -007) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
APPLICANT:   Lou Forges – Robinson Forges Realty International 
 
OWNER:   Technology Property LLC 
 
LOCATION: West of Clarcona Rd, south of West Keene Rd 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” P-D (Planned Industrial Development) (ZIP)  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Wholesale Commercial 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: “City” C-3 (Wholesale Commercial) (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment 

request is being processed along with a request to change the Zoning Map 
designation from “County” P-D (ZIP) to “City” C-3.) 

 
TRACT SIZE:   9.4 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 1 Units 
    PROPOSED: 102,366 Sq. Ft. 
 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director  Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director   City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director   Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDS\2015\Technology Property LLC\City Council 12 2 15_1st Reading 

Page 114



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject properties have not yet been assigned a “City” Future 
Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a future land use 
designation of Commercial to the properties.  
 
The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on August 5, 2015, through the adoption of Ordinance 
No. 2439.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the owner/applicant.  
Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed as a small-scale 
amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 
 
A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Commercial is compatible with the designations assigned 
to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 9.4 acres. The property owner intends to use 
the site for eventual wholesale commercial development.    
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 
public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with 
the Commercial Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed C-3 Zoning classification.  Site 
development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning is to a non-residential zoning classification and, 
therefore, a capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary because the proposed future land use 
designation will not generate any new residential units.  
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 9, 2015. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 10, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
December 2, 2015- City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 
December 16, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 30, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 
December 4, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/Map/¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and  recommends approval of the change in Future 
Land Use from “County” Rural (0-1 du/5 ac) to “City” Commercial (max FAR 0.25) for the properties owned by 
Technology Property LLC. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 10, 2015, recommended approval (6-0) of the change in 
Future Land Use from “County” Rural (0-1 du/5 ac) to “City” Commercial (max. FAR 0.25) for the property 
owned by Technology Property LLC. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2467; and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 
December 16, 2015. 
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

Page 115



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

                                                                                                                                                                         

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) A-1 Single-family home 

East (City) Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) AG Container nursery 

South (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) PD RV park 

West (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) PD RV park 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with this development of 
wholesale commercial uses.  The property lies south of West Keene Rd and west of Clarcona Rd. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 
October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 
Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin Study Area, the 
subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 
mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed against 
the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 
Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The Property fronts Clarcona Rd.  The vegetative communities 
present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and no wetlands occur on the site, and the terrain has a 
0-5 percent slope. 
 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.i Commercial 
Future Land Use designation. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land use 
designation for the Property is Commercial (max FAR 0.25).  Based on the housing element of the City's 
Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   
 
 
 
 

Page 116



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED (City designation): 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 3 persons 
PROPOSED (City designation): N/A 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 
is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 
3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject properties are located within the 
Orange County Utilities service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.  The property owner 
will need to provide a letter from Orange County Utilities demonstrating available capacity prior to submittal of 
any development plan.  
 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

City of Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  4 lbs./person/day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  2 lbs./person/day 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.003 AC 

 
Page 117



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 

  

Page 118



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

Technology Property LLC 
9.4 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 102, 366 sq. ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 

To: “City” Commercial (max. FAR 0.25) 
Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” P-D (ZIP) 

To: “City” C-3 
Parcel ID #: 27-21-28-6024-00-005; -006; -007 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

Page 119



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 
 
 

 

  

Page 120



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 121



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 
 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

Page 122



ORDINANCE NO. 2467 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” RURAL 
SETTLEMENT (0-1 DU/5 AC) TO “CITY” COMMERCIAL (0.6 FAR), FOR 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF 
CLARCONA ROAD, SOUTH OF WEST KEENE ROAD, COMPRISING 9.4 
ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY 
LLC.; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2443 on September 2, 2015; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2443, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from “County” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) to “City” Commercial (0.6 
FAR), for certain real property generally located west of Clarcona Road, south of West Keene 
Road, comprising 9.4 acres more or less, (Parcel No. 27-21-28-6024-00-005; 27-21-28-6024-00-
006; 27-21-28-6024-007; as further described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 

Page 123



 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2467 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
        day of                , 2015. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
December 2, 2015 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 16, 2015 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: October 30, 2015 

      December 4, 2015 

Page 124



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ORDINANCE NO. 2467 

Technology Property LLC 
9.4 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 102, 366 sq. ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 

To: “City” Commercial (max. FAR 0.25) 
Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” P-D (ZIP) 

To: “City” C-3 
Parcel ID #: 27-21-28-6024-00-005; -006; -007 

 

 VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

 

Page 125



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

9. Ordinance 2468 – First Reading – Change of Zoning     David Moon 
  

Page 126



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  December 2, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance        Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Uses Map 
           Ordinance No. 2468  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2468 - CHANGE OF ZONING – TECHNOLOGY 

PROPERTY, LLC 
    
Request: FIRST READING OF TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY ROAD PROPERTY, 

LLC - FROM “COUNTY” P-D (ZIP) TO “CITY” C-3 (WHOLSESALE 
COMMERCIAL); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING & 
ADOPTION ON DECEMBER 16, 2015. (PARCEL ID # 27-21-28-6024-00-
005; -006; -007) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
APPLICANT:   Lou Forges – Robinson Forges Realty International 
 
OWNER:   Technology Property LLC 
 
LOCATION:   West of Clarcona Rd, south of West Keene Rd 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: “County” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 
 
PROPOSED 
LAND USE: “City” Commercial (max. FAR 0.25) (Note: this Change of Zoning amendment 

request is being processed along with a request to change the Future Land Use Map 
designation from “County” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) to “City” Commercial 
(max FAR 0.25). 

 
ZONING:   “County” P-D (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” C-3 (Wholesale Commercial) (min. lot area of 12,000 sq. ft.) 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Wholesale Commercial 
 
TRACT SIZE:   9.4 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 Residential Units 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 102,366 sq. ft. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director     Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDS\2015\Technology Property LLC\City Council 12 2 15_1st Reading 

Page 127



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject properties have not yet been assigned a “City” Future 
Land Use Designation or a “City” zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning category 
of C-3 to the properties.  
 
The subject properties were annexed into the City of Apopka on August 5, 2015, through the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 2439.  The proposed zoning change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area and 
the subject parcels are vacant.  The applicant has requested the C-3 zoning to assure that the property can be 
developed for wholesale commercial. The property comprises approximately 9.4 acres. 
 
Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate City of Apopka public facilities exist 
to support this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report).  The subject properties are located within the Orange 
County Utilities service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.  The property owner will 
need to provide a letter from Orange County Utilities demonstrating available capacity prior to submittal of any 
development plan. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed C-3 rezoning is consistent with the proposed Future 
Land Use Designation of Commercial (max. FAR 0.25) for this property.   Minimum lot size for property assigned 
the C-3 zoning category is 12,000 sq. ft. for commercial development, and the site far exceeds this area with 
approximately 9.4 acres. 
 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning is to a non-residential zoning classification and, 

therefore, a capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 

  

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 9, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 10, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

December 2, 2015- City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 16, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 30, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 4, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/Map/¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning 
“County” PD (ZIP) to “City” C-3 (Wholesale Commercial) for the properties owned by Technology Property 
LLC. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 10, 2015, recommended approval (6-0) of change in 

zoning from “County” P-D (ZIP) to “City” C-3 for the parcel owned by Technology Property LLC. 

 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2468; and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 

December 16, 2015. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

Page 128



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 
ZONING REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

North (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) A-1 Single-family home 

East (City) Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) AG Container nursery 

South (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) PD RV park (Jelly Stone RV Park\Clarcona Resort) 

West (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) PD RV park (Jelly Stone RV Park\Clarcona Resort) 

North (County) Rural Settlement (1 du/5 ac) A-1 Single-family home 

 
LAND USE & TRAFFIC 
COMPATIBILITY:  The subject property fronts a minor arterial (Clarcona Road).  Current access occurs on a 

temporary basis from the RV park.  Future development of the site will likely require a 
change in the access to a driveway connecting the subject property directly to Clarcona Road. 

 
 The zoning application covers approximately 9.4 acres. The property owner intends to use 

the property for future wholesale commercial. 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed C-3 zoning is consistent with the Commercial (max. FAR 0.25) Future Land 

Use designation and with the character of the surrounding area and future proposed 
development.  Per Section 2.02.01, Table II-1, of the Land Development Code, C-3 zoning 
is one of the acceptable zoning districts allowed within the Residential Low Density Future 
Land Use designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 
adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

C-3 DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

 
Based on the above zoning standards, the existing 9.4 acre parcels comply with code 
requirements for the C-3 district. 

BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum ten-foot landscaped buff-

eryard.  Areas adjacent to agricultural and residential uses or districts shall provide a mini-
mum six-foot-high masonry wall within a ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

ALLOWABLE USES:  Any use permitted in the C-2 General Commercial District, as well as heating and air 
conditioning sales, building material storage and sales, contractor’s storage and equipment 
yards, mechanical garage, automobile body and painting shops. Trade shops and schools, 
truck stops, fruit packaging and processing facilities when accessory to retail fruit sale on-
site.  Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses permitted herein which adhere 
to the intent of the district. 

  

Maximum Floor Area Ratio: 0.25 

Minimum Site Area: 12,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 100 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 10 ft. (30 ft. from residential) 

 Rear: 15 ft. (30 ft. from residential) 

 Side: 10 ft. (30 ft. from residential) 

 Corner 15 ft. 

Page 129



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
 
 

Technology Property LLC 
9.4 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 102,366 sq. ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 

To: “City” Commercial (max. FAR 0.25) 
Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” P-D (ZIP) 

To: “City” C-3 
Parcel ID #: 27-21-28-6024-00-005; -006; -007 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

Page 130



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 
 

 

  

Page 131



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 132



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 133



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2468 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” P-D (ZIP) TO “CITY” C-3 (WHOLESALE 

COMMERCIAL) (0.25 FAR) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED WEST OF CLARCONA ROAD, SOUTH OF WEST KEENE ROAD, 

COMPRISING 9.4 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY TECHNOLOGY 

PROPERTY LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in 
Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed C-3 (Wholesale Commercial) (0.25 FAR) zoning has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 
follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the 
City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby C-3 (Wholesale Commercial), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

OAK HEIGHTS REPLAT S/8 COMM NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 27-21-28 

TH RUN S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TH RUN S00-17-40W 475.57 FT TO POB TH CONT 

S00-17-40W 25 FT TH S89-58-35W 25 FT TH RUN S00-17-40W 13.02 FT TO CURVE 

CONCAVE NELY RAD 105 FT DELTA 18-11-44 SELY FOR 33.34 FT TO REVERSE 

CURVE CONCAVE SWLY RAD OF 95 FT DELTA 08-17-04 SELY FOR 13.74 FT TO 

REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 25 FT DELTA 13-22-59 SELY FOR 5.84 FT 

TH S01-29-51W 215.22 FT TH N89-58-35E 416.69 FT TH N69-01-28E 10 FT TH N20-

58-32W 18.89 FT TH N69-01-28 E 135 FT TH N20-58-32W 252.08 FT TH S89-58-35W 

434.24 FT TO POB (LESS THE W 3 FT LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING DESC: 

COMM AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 PF SEC TH S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TO W 

LINE OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 AND W LINE OF OAK HGTS REP S/8 TH S00-17-

40W 475.58 FT ALONG SAID LINE TO S LINE OF N120 FT OF S1009.3 FT OF OAK 

HGTS REP TH N89-58-35E 434.24 FT TO WLY R/W LINE OF SR 435 (CLARCONA 

RD) TH S20-58-33E 729.76 FT TO NE COR OF TR T-10 YOGI BEAR'S JELLYSTONE 

PARK CAMP RESORT (APOPKA) TH N88-30-09W 722.91 FT ALONG SAID TR T-10 

AND N LINE OF TR C TO POB TH N88-30-09W 3 FT TO NW COR OF TR C TH N01-

29-51E 572.67 FT TH S88-30-09E 3 FT TH S01-29-51W 572.67 FT TO POB PER 

10831/5459); AND OAK HEIGHTS REPLAT S/8 COMM NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 

OF SEC 27-21-28 TH RUN S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TH RUN S00-17-40W 500.57 FT TH 

RUN S89-58-35W 25 FT TH S00-17-40W 13.02 FT TO CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 

105 FT DELTA 18-11-44 SELY FOR 33.34 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE SWLY 

RAD 95 FT DELTA 08-17-04 SELY FOR 13.74 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE 
Page 134



ORDINANCE NO. 2468 

PAGE 2 
 

 

NELY RAD 25 FT DELTA 13-22-59 SELY FOR 5.84 FT TH S01-29-51W 215.22 FT TO 

POB TH CONT S01-29-51W 167.76 FT TH N89-58-35E 492.56 FT TH N30-44-24E 8.03 

FT TH N69-01-28E 131.97 FT TH N20-58-32W 196.07 FT TH S69-01-28W 135 FT TH 

S20-58-32E 18.89 FT TH S69-01-28W 10 FT TH S89-58-35W 416.69 FT TO POB (LESS 

THE W 3 FT LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING DESC: COMM AT NW COR OF 

NE1/4 OF NW1/4 PF SEC TH S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TO W LINE OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF 

NW1/4 AND W LINE OF OAK HGTS REP S/8 TH S00-17-40W 475.58 FT ALONG SAID 

LINE TO S LINE OF N120 FT OF S1009.3 FT OF OAK HGTS REP TH N89-58-35E 

434.24 FT TO WLY R/W LINE OF SR 435 (CLARCONA RD) TH S20-58-33E 729.76 FT 

TO NE COR OF TR T-10 YOGI BEAR'S JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP RESORT 

(APOPKA) TH N88-30-09W 722.91 FT ALONG SAID TR T-10 AND N LINE OF TR C 

TO POB TH N88-30-09W 3 FT TO NW COR OF TR C TH N01-29-51E 572.67 FT TH 

S88-30-09E 3 FT TH S01-29-51W 572.67 FT TO POB PER 10831/5459); AND OAK 

HEIGHTS REPLAT S/8 COMM NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 27-21-28 TH 

RUN S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TH S00-17-40W 500.57 FT TH S89-58-35W 25 FT TH S00-

17-40W 13.02 FT TO CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 105 FT DELTA 18-11-44 SELY 

FOR 33.34 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE SWLY RAD 95FT DELTA 08-17-04 

SELY FOR 13.74 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 25 FT DELTA 13-

22-59 SELY FOR 5.84 FT TH S01-29-51W 382.89 FT TO POB TH CONT S01-29-51W 

189.70 FT TH RUN S88-30-09E 318.32 FT TO CURVE CONCAVE SELY RAD 100 FT 

CHORD N81-23-00E NELY FOR 35.31 FT TH S01-29-51E 16.17 FT M/L TH S88-30-09E 

373 FT TH N20-58-32W 281.60 FT TH S69-01-28W 131.97 FT TH S30-44-24W 8.03 FT 

TH S89-58-35W 492.56 FT TO POB & COMM AT SE CORNER OF OAK HGTS REP 

S/8 TH RUN N89-59-04E 129.21 FT TO W R/W OF APOPKA VINELAND ROAD TH 

N20-58-32W 107.53 FT TO POB SAID PT BEING SE CORNER OF TR T-10 OF YOGI 

BEARS JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT 3347/2482; CONT N20-58-32W 115 FT 

TO POB TH S58-19-30W 50.88 FT TH S46-42-32W 45 FT TH N88-17-28W 120 FT TH 

N80-52-21W 115 FT TH N88-30-09W 64.49 FT TH N01-30-04E 43.83 FT TH S88-30-20E 

373 FT TO POB PER 10831/5459 (LESS THE W 3 FT LYING WITHIN THE 

FOLLOWING DESC: COMM AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 PF SEC TH S89-49-

06E 645.67 FT TO W LINE OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 AND W LINE OF OAK HGTS 

REP S/8 TH S00-17-40W 475.58 FT ALONG SAID LINE TO S LINE OF N120 FT OF 

S1009.3 FT OF OAK HGTS REP TH N89-58-35E 434.24 FT TO WLY R/W LINE OF SR 

435 (CLARCONA RD) TH S20-58-33E 729.76 FT TO NE COR OF TR T-10 YOGI 

BEAR'S JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP RESORT (APOPKA) TH N88-30-09W 722.91 FT 

ALONG SAID TR T-10 AND N LINE OF TR C TO POB TH N88-30-09W 3 FT TO NW 

COR OF TR C TH N01-29-51E 572.67 FT TH S88-30-09E 3 FT TH S01-29-51W 572.67 

FT TO POB PER 10831/5459) 

Parcel I.D.: 27-21-28-6024-00-005; 27-21-28-6024-00-006; & 27-21-28-6024-00-007 

Contains: 9.4 +/- Acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.   

Page 135



ORDINANCE NO. 2468 

PAGE 3 
 

 

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect 

of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 

 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: October 30, 2015  

December 4, 2015 
  

READ FIRST TIME:  December 2, 2015 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 16, 2015 

Page 136



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

10. Ordinance 2469 – First Reading – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment David Moon 
  

Page 137



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  December 2, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance         Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Uses Map 
           Ordinance No. 2469 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2469 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - SMALL SCALE - 
FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – CITY OF APOPKA 

     
Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2469 – CITY OF APOPKA FROM 

“CITY” PARKS/RECREATION TO “CITY” INDUSTRIAL (MAX FAR 
0.60); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING & ADOPTION. 
(PARCEL ID #: 15-21-28-0000-00-080) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
APPLICANT/OWNER: City of Apopka 
 
LOCATION: North of East Cleveland Street, west of Sheeler Avenue 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
CURRENT ZONING: PR  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Light industrial  
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: I-1 (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment request is being processed along 

with a request to change the Zoning Map designation from PR to I-1.) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   9.95 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 0 Units 
    PROPOSED: 260,053 Sq. Ft. 
 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDS\2015\City of Apopka\City Council 12 2 15_1st Rd 
 
 
 
 

 Page 138



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by 

the City of Apopka.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed 

as a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Industrial is compatible with the designations assigned to 

abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 9.95 acres. The property owner intends to use 

the site for eventual light industrial development. Access to the site will occur from a road or driveway connecting 

to East Cleveland Street through an abutting City-owned property, unless another access is created to connect to 

13th Street. 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 

public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent with 

the Industrial Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed I-1 Zoning classification.  Site development 

cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning is to a non-residential zoning classification and, 

therefore, a capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 9, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 10, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

December 2, 2015- City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 16, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 30, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 4, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/Map/¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and  recommends approval of the change in Future Land Use from Parks/Recreation to Industrial (max FAR 0.60) 
for the property owned by the City of Apopka. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 10, 2015, recommended approval (6-0) of the change in 
Future Land Use from Parks/Recreation to Industrial (max. FAR 0.60) for the property owned by City of Apopka. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2469; and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 

December 16, 2015. 
 

Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

Page 139



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) 

and Industrial (max FAR 0.60) 

IND-2/IND-3 

(ZIP) 

Light Industrial 

East (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) R-l Vacant 

South (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) PUD Vacant 

West (City) Parks/Recreation PR Vacant (City training site) 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with this development of light 
industrial uses.  The property lies north of East Cleveland St and east of Clarcona Rd. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 

 Area of Critical State Concern: No 

 DRI / FQD: No 

 

 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 

October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   

 

 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 

Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin Study Area, the 

subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 

mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed against 

the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 

Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 

 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 

 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 

 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 

Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features present on this property. 

 

 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The Property fronts E Cleveland St.  The vegetative 

communities present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and no wetlands occur on the site, and the 

terrain has a 5-12 percent slope. 

 

 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.l Industrial 

Future Land Use designation. 

 

 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land use 

designation for the property is Industrial (max FAR 0.60).  Based on the housing element of the City's 

Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   
Page 140



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

 

CALCULATIONS: 

ADOPTED (City designation): N/A 

PROPOSED (City designation): N/A 

 

 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 

Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 

Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 

is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 

3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ;   81 GPD/Capita; 

 81 GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  0 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  39,008 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 177 GPD/Capita; 

 177 GPD/Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  0 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  52,011 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 
Page 141



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: No           
 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

City of Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  N/A lbs./person/day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  3 lbs./1000 sq. ft. 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981 GPD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 GPD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  No 
 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita Page 142



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  N/A AC 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 

  

Page 143



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

City of Apopka 
9.95 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  0 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 260,053 sq. ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: Parks/Recreation 

To: Industrial (max. FAR 0.60) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: PR 
To: I-1 

Parcel ID #: 15-21-28-0000-00-080 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTY 

Page 144



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 
 
 

 

  

Page 145



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 146



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

CITY OF APOPKA - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 
 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

Page 147



ORDINANCE NO. 2469 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM PARKS/RECREATION TO 
INDUSTRIAL (0.6 FAR), FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF EAST CLEVELAND STREET, 
WEST OF SHEELER AVENUE, COMPRISING 9.95 ACRES MORE OR 
LESS, AND OWNED BY CITY OF APOPKA.; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2467 on December 16, 2015; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2467, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from Parks/Recreation to Industrial (0.60 FAR), for certain real property 
generally located north of East Cleveland Street, west of Sheeler Avenue, comprising 9.95 acres 
more or less, (Parcel No. 15-21-28-0000-00-080; as further described in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
 

Page 148



 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2469 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
        day of                , 2015. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
December 2, 2015 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:  

 
 
December 16, 2015 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: October 30, 2015 

      December 4, 2015 

 

Page 149



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ORDINANCE NO. 2469 

 
City of Apopka 
9.95 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  0 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 260,053 sq. ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: Parks/Recreation 

To: Industrial (max. FAR 0.60) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: PR 
To: I-1 

Parcel ID #: 15-21-28-0000-00-080 
 

 VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

 

Page 150



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

11. Ordinance 2470 – First Reading – Change of Zoning     David Moon 
  

Page 151



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  December 2, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance        Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Uses Map 
           Ordinance No. 2470  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2470 - CHANGE OF ZONING – CITY OF APOPKA 
    
Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2470 - CHANGE OF ZONING – 

CITY OF APOPKA - FROM PR (PARKS/RECREATION) I-1 
(RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 
READING & ADOPTION ON DECEMBER 16, 2015. (PARCEL ID 15-21-28-
0000-00-080) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
APPLICANT:   SUMMARY 
 
APPLICANT/OWNER: City of Apopka 
 
LOCATION:   North of East Cleveland Street, west of Sheeler Avenue 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Parks/Recreation 
 
PROPOSED 
LAND USE: Industrial (max. FAR 0.60) (Note: this Change of Zoning amendment request is 

being processed along with a request to change the Future Land Use Map 
designation from Parks/Recreation to Industrial (max FAR 0.60). 

 
ZONING:   PR (Parks/Recreation) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: I-1 (Restricted Industrial) (min. lot area of 15,000 sq. ft.) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Light industrial  
 
TRACT SIZE:   9.95 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  0 Residential Units 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 260,053 Sq. Ft. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director     Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2015\City of Apopka\Planning Commission 11 10 15 
 

Page 152



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
CITY OF APOPKA – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

The proposed zoning change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area and the subject parcels are 

vacant.  The City is requesting the I-1 zoning to assure that the property can be sold and developed for light 

industrial. The property comprises approximately 9.95 acres. 

 

Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 

zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed I-1 rezoning is consistent with the proposed Future 

Land Use Designation of Industrial (max. FAR 0.60) for this property.   Minimum lot size for property assigned 

the I-1 zoning category is 15,000 sq. ft. for light industrial development. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning is to a non-residential zoning classification and, 

therefore, a capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 

  

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on October 9, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 10, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

December 2, 2015- City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

December 16, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

October 30, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 4, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/Map/¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, recommending approval of the change in Zoning from 
PR (Parks/Recreation) to I-1 (Restricted Industrial).  
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 10, 2015, recommended approval (6-0) of the change in 
Future Land Use from PR (Parks/Recreation) to I-1 (Restricted Industrial) for the property owned by City of 
Apopka. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2470; and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 

December 16, 2015. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 153



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
CITY OF APOPKA – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

North (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) and 
Industrial (max FAR 0.60) 

IND-2/IND-3 
(ZIP) 

Light Industrial 

East (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) R-l Vacant 

South (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) PUD Vacant 

West (City) Parks/Recreation PR Vacant (City training site) 

North (City) Residential Medium (10 du/ac) and 
Industrial (max FAR 0.60) 

IND-2/IND-3 
(ZIP) 

Light Industrial 

 
LAND USE & TRAFFIC 
COMPATIBILITY: The parcel is landlocked but the abutting parcel to the southwest is also owned by the 

City of Apopka.  Prior to development of the subject property for industrial purposes, a 
road or driveway must be constructed across the City’s southern parcel to create access 
between Cleveland Street and the subject parcel. 

 
 The zoning application covers approximately 9.95 acres. The property owner intends to 

sell the property for use for light industrial development.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed I-1 zoning is consistent with the Industrial (max. FAR 0.60) Future Land 

Use designation and with the character of the surrounding area and future proposed 
development.  Per Section 2.02.01, Table II-1, of the Land Development Code, I-1 
zoning is one of the acceptable zoning districts allowed within the Industrial Future 
Land Use designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 
adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

C-3 DISTRICT  
REQUIREMENTS:  

Maximum Floor Area Ratio: 0.60 

Minimum Site Area: 15,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 100 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. 

 Rear: 10 ft. (30 ft. from residential) 

 Side: 10 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft. 
Based on the above zoning standards, the existing 9.95 acre parcel complies with code 
requirements for the I-1 district. 

BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum 25-foot landscaped 

bufferyard.  Areas adjacent to agricultural uses or districts shall provide a minimum of 
ten feet abutting the property line with landscaping and a six-foot-high masonry wall. 

ALLOWABLE USES:  Any C-3 Commercial District permitted use and light manufacturing of novelties, 
souvenirs, bakery, garments, electrical, precision  instruments or equipment, 
computers, furniture, metal and other similar products. Bus, cab and truck repair, 
dyeing, dry cleaning and laundering.  Machinery sales, machine shops, meat storage, 
cutting and distribution.  Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses 
permitted herein which adhere to the intent of the district.  

 
Page 154



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
CITY OF APOPKA – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
 

City of Apopka 
9.95 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  0 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 260,053 sq. ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: Parks/Recreation 

To: Industrial (max. FAR 0.60) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: PR 
To: I-1 

Parcel ID #: 15-21-28-0000-00-080 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTY 

Page 155



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
CITY OF APOPKA – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 
 

 

  

Page 156



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
CITY OF APOPKA – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 157



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
CITY OF APOPKA – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 158



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2470 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM PR (PARKS/RECREATION) TO I-1 (RESTRICTED 

INDUSTRIAL) (0.60 FAR) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED NORTH OF EAST CLEVELAND STREET, WEST OF SHEELER 

AVENUE, COMPRISING 9.95 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY CITY 

OF APOPKA; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified 
in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed I-1 (Restricted Industrial) (0.60 FAR) zoning has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development 
Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, 
as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the 
City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby I-1 (Restricted Industrial) (0.6 FAR), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

NW1/4 OF SW1/4 OF SE1/4 SEC 15-21-28  

Parcel I.D: 15-21-28-0000-00-080 

Contains: 9.95 +/- Acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.  The Community Development Director shall not accept an application for a 

development plan until such time the property owner addresses school capacity enhancement review with 

Orange County Public Schools. 

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or 

effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 

 

Page 159



ORDINANCE NO. 2470 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: October 30, 2015  

December 4, 2015 
  

READ FIRST TIME:  December 2, 2015 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 16, 2015 

Page 160



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

12. Ordinance 2471 – First Reading – Change of Zoning     David Moon 
  

Page 161



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING     DATE:  December 2, 2015 
          ANNEXATION     FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL     EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance       Vicinity Map 
          Adjacent Zoning Map 
          Adjacent Uses Map 
          Master Plan/Preliminary Dev. Plan 
          Landscape Plan 
          Ordinance No. 2471  
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2471 – CHANGE OF ZONING – RAYNOR SHINE 
RECYCLING SOLUTIONS, FROM “COUNTY” I-4 (ZIP) AND “CITY” I-1 
TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/I-2); AND THE MASTER 
PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN. 

     

Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2471 -- APPROVAL OF THE 
CHANGE OF ZONING FROM “COUNTY” I-4 (ZIP) & “CITY” I-1 TO 
“CITY” PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/I-2); APPROVAL OF THE 
MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN; AND HOLD 
OVER FOR SECOND READING & ADOPTION.  (PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 
01-21-27-0000-00-026 & 01-21-27-0000-00-080)  

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER:   Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC 
 
APPLICANT/ENGINEER: American Civil Engineering Co., c/o John Herbert, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: 100 & 126 Hermit Smith Road (Southern terminus of Hermit Smith Road) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land, warehouse, office 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” I-4 (ZIP) (15.25 ac +/-) and “City” I-1 (4.15 ac +/-) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Mulch Operation 
 
TRACT SIZE:   19.4 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 507,038 sq. ft. 
    PROPOSED: 507,038 sq. ft.  
 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Director  Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director   City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director   Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   

 Page 162



CITY COUNCIL – DECMEBER 2, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Parcel No. 01-21-27-0000-00-026 was annexed into the City of Apopka on 

November 1, 2006, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 1877.  Parcel No. 01-21-27-0000-00-080 was annexed 

into the City of Apopka on February 2, 2005, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 1733.   The proposed Change 

of Zoning is being requested by the applicant, Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC. 

   

The zoning application covers approximately 19.4 +/- acres.  The property owner intends to use the site for a mulch 

production manufacturing operation.  This use involves the following activities:  heavy outdoor mulching 

equipment, outdoor storage of raw materials, large trucks entering and leaving the property with raw materials 

(removed or harvested trees or tree limbs) or finished product (landscape mulch).  An office use will occur at the 

site for on-site management of operations and for business sales.  The office use is ancillary to the mulch production 

operation.  Based on the storage of outdoor raw material as well as a manufacturing operation that does not occur 

within an enclosed building, the proposed use meets the intent of the I-2 zoning category.   Both parcels have been 

acquired by and under legal ownership of the applicant.  The smaller of the two parcels, Parcel Number 01-21-27-

0000-00-080, is approximately 4.15 acres has not been assigned a City zoning category but currently retains a 

County zoning category of I-4 Industrial.  The County’s I-4 zoning category is similar to the City’s I-2 zoning 

category.  The larger parcel, Parcel Number 01-21-27-0000-00-026, is approximately 15.25 acres and has a City I-

1 zoning assigned to it.  The proposed use does not meet the intent of the I-1 zoning category and requires I-2 

zoning.   

 

The applicant originally sought I-2 zoning for the subject property.  However, the City’s planning staff determined 

that many of the uses proposed under I-2 zoning are too intensive considering the predominant land uses in the 

surrounding area are zoned for I-1, conservation, or agriculture.  However, the mulch production use, as proposed, 

is a use that planning staff considers to be compatible with the surrounding area.  Taking into consideration the 

opinion of the Planning staff, the applicant agreed to apply for a PUD zoning that will limit the use of the subject 

property to only the mulch production operation and any related ancillary uses, as well as any I-1 uses currently 

allowed. 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 

public facilities exist to support this change of zoning (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 

The PUD recommendations are that the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as 

Planned Unit Development (PUD\I-2), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following 

Master Plan provisions are subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

A. The zoning and uses permitted within the PUD district for the subject property shall be:   

 

1. Use of the subject property will be limited to the manufacturing and production of mulch with outdoor 

storage of raw materials and with outdoor manufacturing operations.  All outdoor storage and outdoor 

manufacturing operations shall be located within a screened area not visible from adjacent properties or 

streets.  Outdoor mulch manufacturing and the outdoor storage of raw materials are the only I-2 uses 

that are allowed. 

 

2. Any I-1 or C-3 permitted use is allowed. 

 

3. C-2, C-1, CN, or PO/I permitted uses will not be allowed as a primary use.  Any office use shall be 

associated with the industrial activity occurring at the subject site. Page 163



CITY COUNCIL – DECMEBER 2, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

 

4. Any use of the property other than the permitted uses described above, shall require an amendment to 

the PUD through the zoning process. 

 

5. Overnight parking of trucks or other large vehicles shall only occur within the boundaries of the Master 

Site Plan and within areas so designated on said Plan.  No overnight parking of trucks will be allowed 

within the office parking lots.  No parking of any vehicle will occur within any roadway easement 

running within the subject property or abutting the eastern property line. 

 

6. Outdoor storage of raw materials shall only occur at approved locations denoted within the Master Site 

Plan. 

 

7. All mulching equipment shall only be placed in the areas denoted on the Master Site Plan. 

 

8. No parking of any vehicle or truck or outdoor storage shall occur within any landscape buffer area 

appearing on the Master Site Plan. 

 

B. Development standards and conditions required of any development within the PUD district for the subject 

property shall be: 

 

1.  Building elevations will be provided at time of a Final Development Plan application. 

 

2. Maximum height of any building, mulch conveyor belts, manufacturing equipment, raw material piles 

are not to exceed thirty-five feet from the finished ground level. 

 

3. All perimeter landscape areas shall be protected from vehicle encroachment by curbing or wheel stops. 

    

C. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City within two 

years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. 

At such time, the City Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Preliminary Development Plan; 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new Master Plan 

provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

4. Unless otherwise addressed within the PUD development standards, the I-1 zoning standards will apply 

to the subject property. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) zoning 

designation is consistent with the Industrial (0.60 FAR) future land use designation and the proposed use of the 

property.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Because this change of zoning represents a change to a non-residential 

designation, notification of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 

 Page 164



CITY COUNCIL – DECMEBER 2, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public 

hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on September 11, 2015. 

 

SPECIAL STANDARDS:   The applicant has proposed the below waiver requests (which appear on the cover 

sheet of the Master Plan).  As the applicant has applied for a PUD zoning, these waiver requests will be listed as 

Development Standards approved for the subject property.  Thus, the below waivers are considered to be additional 

development standards that will be incorporated in the PUD ordinance, unless specifically amended or denied by 

City Council. 

 

1. LDC, Section 2.02.15. G.1. - Areas adjacent to all roads shall provide eight (8) foot masonry wall within a 

minimum 25-foot landscaped bufferyard.   Applicant is requesting a waiver to allow a 10-foot landscaped 

bufferyard due to the easement in lieu of a road abuts the eastern property line and a fence will provide a 

black or green vinyl coated chain link fence adjacent property to zoned I-1.  

 

2. LDC, Section 2.02.15. G.2. - Areas adjacent to agricultural districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall 

within a minimum of ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.  Applicant is requesting a waiver to allow a 10-foot 

landscaped bufferyard with a 6-foot chain link fence.  The justifications for the request is due to the property 

to the west containing vegetation from a fern growing operating that blocks the view; and the property to the 

north is a citrus grove with a dense 6-foot hedge.  The chain link fence will be green or black vinyl coated. 

  

3. LDC, Section 2.02.15. G.3. - Areas adjacent to residential districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall 

within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped bufferyard.  Applicant is requesting a waiver to allow a 30-foot 

buffer with a 6-foot chain link along the property line to the north because the adjacent land is owned by 

the Applicant and is intended to be rezoning to I-1.  Additionally, the Applicant is requesting a waiver to 

allow a 20-foot buffer along the southern property line because the adjacent property is a borrow pit that is 

not conducive to residential use. The chain link fence will be green or black vinyl coated. 

 

4. LDC, Section 2.02.15.G.2. – A 6’foot high masonry wall is required adjacent to a citrus grove and is not 

anticipated to develop as residential.  No public access is near this area and will not be highly visible.  The 

chain link fence will be green or black vinyl coated. 

 

5. LCD, Section 2.02.15.G.3. – A 20 foot buffer and a 6-foot high masonry wall is required adjacent to residen-

tial zoned property.  The abutting residential-zoned parcel is owned by Raynor Shine LLC, and the access 

drive crosses that parcel.  Raynor Shine plans to request to rezone that parcel to Office or Industrial use in 

the future. 

 

Staff does not object to any of the above waiver requests, and will incorporate these waivers as devel-

opment standards within the PUD zoning ordinance. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

November 24, 2015 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

December 2, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1st Reading 

December 16, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

September 25, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

November 6, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/map Page 165



CITY COUNCIL – DECMEBER 2, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

Staff recommends that City Council take separate actions for this case – one for the PUD\I-2 zoning and another 

for the Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

1. The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and recommends approval of the change in zoning from “County” I-4 (ZIP) and “City” I-1 to “City” 

Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) for the property owned by Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC. 

 

2.  The Development Review Committee finds the proposed Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan 

to be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and recommends approval of 

the Master Site Plan\preliminary Development Plan subject to the development standards and conditions 

recommended in the staff report, for the property owned by Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC. 

 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 10, 2015, continued this item to the Special Planning 
Commission meeting on November 24, 2015, due to the incorrect site plan having been included in the staff report 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 24, 2015, recommended: 

 

1) Approval (6-0) of the change in zoning from “County” I-4 (ZIP) and “City” I-1 to “City” Planned Unit 

Development (PUD/I-2) for the property owned by Raynor Apopka Land Management, LLC, subject to the 

information and findings in the staff report. 

 

2) Approval (6-0) of the Master Site Plan\preliminary Development Plan subject to the development standards 

and conditions recommended in the staff report, for the property owned by Raynor Apopka Land 

Management, LLC. 

 

City Council: 

 

1) Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2471 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 

December 16, 2015. 

 

2) Accept the Raynor Shine Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

 

Page 166



CITY COUNCIL – DECMEBER 2, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (1 du/10 ac/Agricultural) A-1 vacant 

East (City) Industrial (0.60 FAR) I-4 warehouse\trucking business 

South (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) Mixed-EC vacant 

West (County) Rural (1 du/10 ac/Agricultural) A-1 warehouse 

 

LAND USE &  

TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The Property has access to a Hermit Smith Road through an access easement 

that the property owner has demonstrated rights thereto.  Hermit Smith Road 

allows for easy access to a regional highway that leads to U.S. 441 and 

429/S.R. 451.   

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) zoning is consistent with 

the City’s Industrial Future Land Use Designation. Development plans shall 

not exceed the density allowed under the adopted future land use designation. 

 

PUD/I-2 DISTRICT  

REQUIREMENTS:  The PUD describes the development standards that apply. The I-1 

development standards are listed below. 

Minimum Site Area: 25,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width: 150 ft. 

Setbacks:        Front: 25 ft. from property line 

 

                       Rear: 10 ft., except where rear lot lines abut a residential 

district, then all structures shall be set back a 

minimum of 30 feet or a distance equivalent to 

any required bufferyard, whichever is greater.  

 

                       Side: 10 ft. from property line or a distance equivalent 

to any required bufferyard, whichever is greater. 

All yards adjacent to road rights-of-way shall be 

a minimum of 25 feet. 

 

Zero Lot Lines: Rear yards and side yards may be reduced to zero 

when the rear or side property lines abut the 

boundary of a railroad right-of-way, but only in 

those cases where an adjacent wall or walls of a 

building or structure are provided with railroad 

loading and unloading capabilities.  

  

 
Page 167



CITY COUNCIL – DECMEBER 2, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

BUFFER-YARD  

REQUIREMENTS:  Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide eight (8) foot masonry 

wall within a minimum 25-foot landscaped bufferyard. Areas adjacent to 

agricultural districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall within a 

minimum of ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.  Areas adjacent to residential 

districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall within a minimum of 50-

foot landscaped bufferyard. Areas adjacent to nonresidential, non-I-2 

industrial uses or districts shall provide an eight-foot masonry wall within a 

minimum of ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. I-2 uses occurring adjacent to 

existing I-2 districts or uses shall be required to provide a ten-foot landscaped 

bufferyard.  

 

ALLOWABLE USES:  The only I-2 use that is allowed through the PUD\I-2 zoning is outdoor mulch 

operation and outdoor storage of raw materials. 

 

Any use permitted in the I-1 District. Bus, cab and truck storage and terminals. 

Building material and contractor's storage, equipment yards and sales. 

Machinery storage.  Bulk storage of petroleum.  Asphalt (or similar petroleum 

product), cement, lime, gypsum or plaster of paris or concrete manufacturing, 

mixing or refining or the open storage of raw materials or finished products 

related to such manufacture.  Blast furnace or similar heat or glare-generating 

operations.  Corrosive acid manufacture or bulk storage, including, but not 

limited to, hydrochloric, nitric, sulfuric or similar acids.  Fertilizer 

manufacturing and processing.  Junk, salvage or wrecking yard or structure 

wherein motor vehicles, appliances or similar use equipment or materials are 

stored, dismantled or store for display, sale or packing; provided, all open 

storage and processing activities are enclosed within a wall or structure.  

Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses permitted herein 

which adhere to the intent of the district and which are not prohibited as 

specified in this Code. Use determination shall be based upon the community 

development director's recommendation.  

 

  

Page 168



CITY COUNCIL – DECMEBER 2, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

Raynor Shine Recycling Services, Inc. 
19.4 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 507,038 sq. ft. 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 507,038 sq. ft. 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” I-4 (ZIP) & “City” I-1 

To: “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) 
Parcel ID #s: 01-21-217-0000-00-026 & 01-21-217-0000-00-080 

 

          

VICINITY MAP 
 
 

 
 

  

Subject Property 

Page 169



CITY COUNCIL – DECMEBER 2, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

  

Subject Property 

Page 170



CITY COUNCIL – DECMEBER 2, 2015 

RAYNOR SHINE RECYCLING SOLUTIONS - CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

Page 171



ORDINANCE NO. 2471 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” I-4 (ZIP) AND “CITY” I-1 TO PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT (PUD/I-2); FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED WEST OF HERMIT SMITH ROAD AND SOUTH OF HOGSHEAD 

ROAD, COMPRISING 19.4 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY RAYNOR 

APOPKA LAND MANAGEMENT LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 

AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in 
Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2) zoning has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 
follows: 
  
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as 
Planned Unit Development (PUD/I-2), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the 
following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 
A. The zoning and uses permitted within the PUD district for the subject property shall be:   

 

1. Use of the subject property will be limited to the manufacturing and production of mulch with 

outdoor storage of raw materials and with outdoor manufacturing operations.  All outdoor 

storage and outdoor manufacturing operations shall be located within a screened area not visible 

from adjacent properties or streets.  Outdoor mulch manufacturing and the outdoor storage of 

raw materials are the only I-2 uses that are allowed. 

 

2. Any I-1 or C-3 permitted use is allowed. 

 

3. C-2, C-1, CN, or PO/I permitted uses will not be allowed as a primary use.  Any office use shall 

be associated with the industrial activity occurring at the subject site. 

 

4. Any use of the property other than the permitted uses described above, shall require an 

amendment to the PUD through the zoning process. 

 

5. Overnight parking of trucks or other large vehicles shall only occur within the boundaries of the 

Master Site Plan and within areas so designated on said Plan.  No overnight parking of trucks 

will be allowed within the office parking lots.  No parking of any vehicle will occur within any 

roadway easement running within the subject property or abutting the eastern property line. 

 

6. Outdoor storage of raw materials shall only occur at approved locations denoted within the 

Master Site Plan. 

 

Page 172



ORDINANCE NO. 2471 

PAGE 2 
 

 

7. All mulching equipment shall only be placed in the areas denoted on the Master Site Plan. 

 

8. No parking of any vehicle or truck or outdoor storage shall occur within any landscape buffer 

area appearing on the Master Site Plan. 

 

B. Development standards and conditions required of any development within the PUD district for the 

subject property shall be: 

 

1.  Building elevations will be provided at time of a Final Development Plan application. 

 

2. Maximum height of any building, mulch conveyor belts, manufacturing equipment, raw material 

piles are not to exceed thirty-five feet from the finished ground level. 

 

3. All perimeter landscape areas shall be protected from vehicle encroachment by curbing or wheel 

stops. 

    

C. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City 

within two years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan 

provisions will expire. At such time, the City Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Preliminary Development Plan; 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new Master 

Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

4. Unless otherwise addressed within the PUD development standards, the I-1 zoning standards 

will apply to the subject property. 
 
 Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the 
City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

The Southwest one-quarter (SW ¼) of the Southeast one-quarter (SE ¼) of the Southwest one-
quarter (SW ¼) of Section 01, Township 21 South, Range27 East, Orange County, Florida, together 
with  
 
The west one-half (W-1/2) of the Southeast one-quarter (SE-1/4) of the Southeast one-quarter of the 
Southeast one-quarter (SE-1/4) of the Southwest one-quarter (SW-1/4) of  Section 01, Township 21 
South, Range 27 East, Orange County, Florida, and 
The East one-half (E- ½) of the Southeast one-quarter (SE- ¼) of the Southeast one-quarter (SE ¼) 
of the Southwest one-quarter (SW- ¼) (Less the North 163.50 feet of the East 240.00 feet thereof) 
of Section 01, Township 21 South, Range 27 East, Orange County, Florida. 
 

 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 
Page 173



ORDINANCE NO. 2471 

PAGE 3 
 

 

 

 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.   

 

 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect 

of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately.  

 

 
 

                       
 
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Clifford B. Shepard, Esq., City Attorney 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: September 25, 2015 
    November 6, 2015    

READ FIRST TIME:  December 2, 2015 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 16, 2015 

Page 174



1

VICINITY  MAP

Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions, LLC
PUD  Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan

REVISIONSDATE
5/20/14 first edition

Apopka, Florida 32703136 Hermit Smith Road,

Apopka, Florida 32703

5

LAND

CIVIL

Alt. Springs,  Florida   32716
PO Box 160952
Ellis Surveys LLC

American Civil Engineering Co.
207 N. Moss Road, Suite 211

John Herbert, P.E.
Winter Springs, Florida  32708

(407) 327-7700

PROPERTY OWNER:

(407) 470-0142 

Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions, LLC

Ocoee,  Florida  34761
850 Ocoee Apopka Road

(407) 834-4003

ENGINEER:

SURVEYOR:
(boundary)

LAND

Orlando, Florida  32779
318 Sweetwater Creek Drive W.,
Hitt Land Surveyors, Inc.

Jeffrey J. Hitt, PSM
(407) 772-0248

SURVEYOR:
(topographic)

Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions, LLC

136 Hermit Smith Road

Scale: 1 inch = 500 feet

500'250'0'

6/11/14 second edition

PUD  Master Plan / Preliminary Development Plan

6/25/14 third edition
8/07/14 forth edition
10/02/15 fifth edition
10/16/15 sixth edition

Page 175



R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

TE

2 5

Scale: 1 inch = 50 feet

100'50'25'0'

9/
11

/1
4

ad
d 

30
' F

ut
ur

e 
R

O
W

 &
 u

til
ity

 e
as

em
en

t
10

/2
/1

5
R

EV
IS

ED
  P

ER
 C

IT
Y

 R
EV

IE
W

10
/1

6/
15

R
EV

IS
ED

  P
ER

 C
IT

Y
 R

EV
IE

W

Page 176



R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

TE

3 5

Scale: 1 inch = 50 feet

100'50'25'0'

6/
10

/1
4

SE
C

O
N

D
 E

D
IT

IO
N

6/
27

/1
4

TH
IR

D
 E

D
IT

IO
N

8/
7/

14
FO

R
TH

  E
D

IT
IO

N
8/

14
/1

4
ad

d 
U

til
ity

 E
as

em
en

t o
n 

Ea
st

 si
de

 o
f s

ite
10

/2
/1

5
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 R

EV
IE

W
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
10

/1
6/

15
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 R

EV
IE

W
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS

Page 177



R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

TE

4 5

Scale: 1 inch = 50 feet

100'50'25'0'

6/
10

/1
4

SE
C

O
N

D
 E

D
IT

IO
N

6/
27

/1
4

TH
IR

D
 E

D
IT

IO
N

8/
7/

14
FO

R
TH

  E
D

IT
IO

N
10

/2
/1

5
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 R

EV
IE

W
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
10

/1
6/

15
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 R

EV
IE

W
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS

Page 178



R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
A

TE

5 5

Scale: 1 inch = 50 feet

100'50'25'0'

6/
10

/1
4

SE
C

O
N

D
 E

D
IT

IO
N

6/
27

/1
4

TH
IR

D
 E

D
IT

IO
N

8/
7/

14
FO

R
TH

  E
D

IT
IO

N
10

/2
/1

5
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 R

EV
IE

W
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
10

/1
6/

15
R

EV
IS

ED
 P

ER
 R

EV
IE

W
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS

Page 179



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

13. Ordinance 2472 – First Reading – PUD Master Plan  David Moon 
  

Page 180



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

  X  PUBLIC HEARING      MEETING OF:  December 2, 2015 
       SPECIAL REPORTS      FROM:  Community Development  
       PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 
  X  OTHER:  Ordinance        Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Ordinance No.  2472 
           PUD Master Plan 

            Color Rendering 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2472 – CHANGE OF ZONING – AMENDMENT OF 
EXISTING PUD\C-2 ZONING (ORDINANCE NO. 2292) AND MASTER 
PLAN 

 
Request: ACCEPT FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2472 – RACETRAC 

PETROLEUM, INC. – CHANGE OF ZONING, RECENDING ORDINANCE 
NO. 2292, AND AMENDING PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT/C-2) 
AND MASTER PLAN; PARCEL ID NUMBER: 05-21-28-0000-00-039); AND 
HOLD OVER FOR A SECOND READING & ADOPTION. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:   RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc.\Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC 
 
APPLICANT:   AutoZone Stores, LLC 
 
ENGINEER:   CPH c/o Joshua D. Lockhart, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: 1305 West Orange Blossom Trail 

(North of U.S. HWY 441 (a.k.a. Orange Blossom Trail) and East of Errol Parkway) 
 

EXISTING USE:  Convenience Store w/ Fueling Stations 
 
LAND USE:   Commercial  
 
ZONING:   PUD/C-2   
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Retail Auto Parts Store 
 
PROPOSED LOTS:  Lot 1: 2.08 +/- Acres     Lot 2: 0.89 +/- Acres 
 
TOTAL ACRES:  2.94 +/- Acres 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk    
City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief  
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief 
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\REZONING\2015\RaceTrac-Auto Zone\1 Race Trac-Autozone PUD - PC - 11-10-15.docx 

Page 181



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

RACETRAC/AUTOZONE PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Medium (0-10du/ac) R-2 Residential Subdivision 

East (City) Commercial PUD Retail Shopping Center (Victoria Plaza) 

South (City) Commercial C-2 Commercial Retail (Verizon Wireless) 

West (County) Commercial C-2 Commercial Retail 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The original PUD Master Plan was adopted on March 6, 2013, through 
Ordinance #2292 allowing PO/I, CN, C-1, and automotive fuel sales, which is C-2 district permissible use.  
The PUD Master Plan amendment creates two separate lots with an existing gas station and a proposed 
AutoZone retail store.  Lot 1, identifies the existing Marathon (formerly known as RaceTrac) gas station 
consisting of a 5,928 s.f. convenience store with fueling stations.  On Lot 2, AutoZone Store, LLC is 
proposing to construct a 6,815 s.f. retail store with 27 parking spaces. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Compliance:   The proposed PUD (Planned Unit Development/C-2) zoning is 
consistent with the City’s Commercial Future Land Use category. Development plans shall not exceed the 
intensity allowed under the adopted Future Land Use designation. 
 
Land Use Compatibility:  The Property is located on a major arterial road (West Orange Blossom Trail).The 
proposed use and zoning will not create any land use or traffic compatibility issues with adjacent uses.  
Development of the site must occur consistent with standards set forth in the Land Development Code and 
Development Design Guidelines unless otherwise approved within the PUD master site plan. 
 
Buffer Yard Requirements:  Areas adjacent to all road right of ways shall provide a minimum ten foot 
landscape bufferyard.  Areas adjacent to residential uses or districts shall provide a ten foot high masonry 
wall within a ten-foot landscape buffer.  
 
PROPOSED PUD RECOMMENDATIONS: The PUD recommendations are that the zoning 
classification of the following described property be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as 
defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following Master Plan provisions: 
 
Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as Planned Unit 
Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following Master 
Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district are PO/I, CN, C-1, and automotive fuel sales, which is 
C-2 district permissible use. 

 
B. All development standards set forth in the Land Development Code and Development Design 

Guidelines shall apply to development within the PUD unless as otherwise allowed and defined as 
follows: 

 
1. Signage shall comply with the City’s sign codes unless otherwise approved through a master 

sign plan 
 
2.   Illumination plan shall be provided with the preliminary or final development plan. 
 
3.  No outside activities including but not limited to, outside storage of parts, vending machines, 

supplies, merchandise or materials. 
 

 Page 182



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

RACETRAC/AUTOZONE PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 3 

 

C. The C-1 zoning standards shall apply to the development of the subject property unless otherwise 
established herein this ordinance. 

 
D.  A cross access easement shall be illustrated in the  preliminary and final development plans and the 

plat that connect the U.S. 441 entrance to the eastern boundary of the project, allowing for future 
connection to the Victoria Plaza. 

 
E.  The parcel split shall occur through a plat at the time of the final development plan application. 
 
F.  Ordinance No. 2292 is rescinded and replaced by Ordinance No. 2472. 

 
SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS (Waiver Requests):  The applicant has proposed the below 
waiver requests (which appear on the cover sheet of the Master Plan).  As the applicant has applied for a 
PUD zoning, these waiver requests will be listed as Development Standards approved for the subject 
property. No separate action is necessary for each waiver.  Thus, the below waivers are considered to be 
additional development standards that will be incorporated in the PUD ordinance, unless specifically 
amended or denied by City Council. 
 

1. Waiver Request #1:  LDC 2.02.13.G.3 requires areas adjacent to nonresidential uses or districts shall 
provide a minimum five-foot landscaped bufferyard. The applicant is requesting a joint 5 feet wide 
landscape buffer between Lot 1 and 2 in lieu of the required five feet on each parcel.   

 
Justification: Both sites are commercial use and there will be substantial landscaping within the 5’ 
buffer, including 7 ea Crape Myrtle w/ 2” min Caliper 8’ minimum height, 48 ea. Sweet Viburnum 
Hedge 24” minimum height 36” o.c. and Parsons Juniper 24” o.c.  The panhandle portion of the 
Race Trac parcel will be left as open space. 
 
Staff Recommendation: DRC does not object to the waiver request. 
 

2. Waiver Request #2: LDC 6.03.02 Commercial uses not otherwise classified to provide 1 space for 
each 200 square feet of gross floor area. The applicant is requesting the off-street parking to be 
counted at 1 space per 300 square feet of gross building square footage. 
 
Justification: Autozone is comfortable with this parking ratio and it is comparable to other stores 
sites..  The easements, access to and from the adjacent parcels, and the required stormwater reduce 
the parking lot size. Parking that is provided and not necessary only provides for more impervious 
area, which impairs recharge to the aquifer, which does not meet the goals and objective of the City 
of Apopka Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Staff Recommendation: DRC does not object to the waiver request. 
 

3. Waiver Request #3: LDC 6.05.00.D.6.A, requires the minimum requirements for maintenance 
berms are ten feet around pond perimeter.  The applicant is requesting a reduction in width of the 
maintenance berm of 10 feet with fencing to 5 feet for Lot 2. 
 
Justification:  The proposed concrete wall is set back 10’ from the property line, due to an existing 
easement.  An additional 10’ berm on the site side of the wall would take up additional room for 
recharge of the stormwater ponds, necessary to meet the goals and objectives of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed pond is dry and will allow for maintenance and upkeep from 
inside the pond.  

 
Staff Recommendation: DRC does not object to the waiver request. 

 
 Page 183



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

RACETRAC/AUTOZONE PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 4 

 

4. Waiver Request #4: The applicant is requesting a reduction of the requirement of no more than 50% 
of the required parking spaces in front of the building.    

 
Justification:  The overall total number of parking was reduced from 32 to 27, in order to reduce the 
number of parking spaces in the front.  This reduction provided for wider landscape islands, which 
is in the spirit of the ordinance.  The reduction also allows for a cross access drive aisle in the future 
to the Victoria Plaza. 

 
Staff Recommendation: DRC does not object to the waiver request. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
Planning Commission – November 24, 2015, 5:01 p.m. 
City Council – December 2, 2015, 1:30 p.m. – First Reading 
City Council – December 16, 2015, 7:00 p.m. – Second Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
October 23, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 
December 4, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/map 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommended approval of the Racetrac/Autozone PUD 
Master Plan Amendment for the property owned by Race Trac Petroleum, Inc. and Spirit SPE Portfolio CA 
C-Stores, LLC, located north of U.S. Highway 441 aka (Orange Blossom Trail) and east of Errol Parkway, 
subject to PUD Recommendations and the information and findings in the staff report. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 10, 2015, continued this item to the Special 
Planning Commission meeting on November 24, 2015, due to a change of ownership for part of the 
property. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its November 24, 2015 hearing, recommended (5-1) of the 
Racetrac/Autozone PUD Master Plan Amendment and waiver requests for the property owned by Race 
Trac Petroleum, Inc. and Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC, located north of U.S. Highway 441 aka 
(Orange Blossom Trail) and east of Errol Parkway, subject to owner verification prior to the City Council 
meeting, the PUD Recommendations and the information and findings in the staff report. 
 

City Council: 
 

1. Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2472 and Hold it Over for Second Reading & Adoption 
on December 16, 2015. 
 

2. Approve the Racetrac/Autozone PUD Master Plan Amendment and waiver requests  for the property 
owned by Race Trac Petroleum, Inc. and Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC, located north of 
U.S. Highway 441 aka (Orange Blossom Trail) and east of Errol Parkway, subject to ownership 
verification, PUD Recommendations and the information and findings in the staff report. 

 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

Page 184



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

RACETRAC/AUTOZONE PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 5 

 

Application:  PUD Master Plan Amendment   

Applicant:  AutoZone Store, LLC 

Owner:  Racetrac Petroleum, Inc. and Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC 

Engineer:  CPH, Inc. c/o Joshua D. Lockhart , P.E. 

Parcel ID Nos.:   05-21-28-0000-00-039 

Total Acres:  2.94 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Subject Property 

Page 185



PLANNING COMMISSION – DECEMBER 2, 2015 

RACETRAC/AUTOZONE PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 6 

 

Application:  PUD Master Plan Amendment   

Applicant:  AutoZone Store, LLC 

Owner:  Racetrac Petroleum, Inc. and Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC 

Engineer:  CPH, Inc. c/o Joshua D. Lockhart , P.E. 

Parcel ID Nos.:   05-21-28-0000-00-039 

Total Acres:  2.94 +/- 

 

ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 

Page 186



ORDINANCE NO. 2472 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, RECENDING 

ORDINANCE NO. 2292, AND AMENDING THE PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT ZONING (PUD\C-2) STANDARDS AND MASTER PLAN; 

FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF 

WEST ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL (U.S. HWY 441), SOUTH OF OLD DIXIE 

HIGHWAY, AND EAST OF ERROL PARKWAY COMPRISING 2.94 ACRES, 

MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY SPIRIT SPE PORTFOLIO CA C-STORES, 

LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of 
the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Spirit SPE Portfolio Ca C-Stores, LLC, who purchased the site and project from 
RaceTrac Petroleum, Inc. has requested to amend the PUD zoning standards and Master Plan on said 
property as identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed PUD/C-2 zoning and Master Plan amendments have been found to 
be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development 
Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, 
as follows: 
 
 Section I.  Ordinance No. 2292 is rescinded and replaced by Ordinance No. 2472, and that the 
zoning classification of the following described property be designated as Planned Unit Development 
(PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following development 
standards and provisions as appearing within the Master PUD Site Plan, as shown in Exhibit “A”, and 
subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

Permissible uses allowed at the Property shall be any permitted use for the PO/I, CN, and C-1 
districts and automotive fuel sales, which is a C-2 district permissible use. No other C-2 permissible uses 
are allowed.  No outdoor storage or display of merchandise is allowed.  
 

Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described Property, being situated in 
the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby PUD/C-2 as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code: 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

A parcel of land located in the Southeast ¼ of Section 5, Township 21 South, Range 28 

East, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Commence at the Northwest corner of the Southwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 

5; thence South 00º00’00” East, 55.74 feet to the south right-of-way of State Road No. 

424, said point being the Point of Beginning and said point also being the Northeast corner 

of Lot 6, Pine Tree Park, as Recorded in Plat Book 11, Page 44 of the Public Records of 

Orange County, Florida; thence South 63º11’55” East, 67.22 feet along said southerly 

right-of-way of State Road No. 424 to the Northwest corner of Errol Place, as recorded 

in Plat Book 13, Page 10 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida; thence South 

Page 187



ORDINANCE NO. 2472 

PAGE 2 

 

00º00’00” East, 373.99 feet along the west line of said Errol Place to the southwesterly 

corner of said Errol Place; thence South 66º03’50” East, 507.32 feet along the southerly 

line of said Errol Place to the southeasterly corner of said Errol Place; thence South 

23º56’10” West, 200.00 feet to the northerly right-of-way of U.S. Highway No. 441 (State 

Road No. 500); thence north 66º03’50” West, 484.19 feet to the west line of the Southeast 

¼ of said Section 5; thence north 00º00’00” East, 596.49 feet along the aforementioned 

west line to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Parcel ID No.:  05-21-28-0000-00-039 
Containing 2.94 +/- Acres 

 
 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City 
of Apopka, Florida. 
 
 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 
authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 
include said designation. 
 
 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to 
be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or 
effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 
 
 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   
 
 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 
 

READ FIRST TIME:  December 2, 2015 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
December 16, 2015 

                       
 

       _____________________________________ 
        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR TRANSMITTAL HEARING:  October 23, 2015 
         December 4, 2015 
 

Page 188



ORDINANCE NO. 2472 - EXHIBIT "A"

Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

14. Resolution 2015-25 - Reimbursements from proceeds of tax-exempt debt. Glenn A. Irby 
 

  

Page 193



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

     CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:   December 2, 2015  

__ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:        Finance Dept   

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:  

 X    OTHER:  Resolution No. 2015-25         

     
 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 2015-25 – REIMBURSING CERTAIN COSTS RELATING TO 

THE ACQUISITION OF VARIOUS VEHICLES AND OTHER CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 

AS WELL AS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS TO THE CITY’S SEWER SYSTEM. 

 

Request: REQUEST COUNCIL ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2015-25.   

 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The City has incurred, or will incur costs associated with the acquisition of various vehicles and other 

capital equipment as well as capital improvements to its sewer system.  The City has determined it is in 

the best interest to reimburse such costs from proceeds of tax-exempt debt.  In accordance with the United 

States Department of Treasury regulations, Resolution No 2015-25 allows for the reimbursement of those 

certain costs relating to the capital equipment acquisitions, included herein, and the sewer improvements. 

 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
The approved FY 2016 Budget of the General Fund, Streets Improvement Special Revenue Fund and 

Utilities Fund include the capital equipment and improvements to be financed and the corresponding 

revenue to reimburse the costs associated. 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
Adopt Resolution No. 2015-25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

Page 194



 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2015-25 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA WITH RESPECT TO THE 

REIMBURSEMENT OF CERTAIN COSTS RELATING TO 

THE ACQUISITION OF VARIOUS VEHICLES AND 

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT AND THE DESIGN, 

ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION OF THE SEWER 

EXPANSION PROJECT. 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Apopka, Florida (the "City") has incurred and/or will incur 

various costs in relation to the acquisition of various capital equipment and capital 

improvements;  

WHEREAS, the City has determined it is in its best interest to reimburse such costs 

from proceeds of tax-exempt debt; and 

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Treasury has issued various 

regulations in regard to reimbursement of governmental costs through the issuance of tax-

exempt debt; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  It is the intent of the City to reimburse various costs and 

expenditures relating to the acquisition of various vehicles and capital equipment and sewer 

expansion improvements, as more particularly described on Exhibit A hereto, which costs 

and expenditures represent "original expenditures" as such term is defined in Treasury 

Regulations Section 1.150-2(c).  The City has paid for, and/or reasonably anticipates that 

it will pay for such costs and expenditures relating to capital equipment from moneys on 

deposit in its various government funds.  It is reasonably expected that reimbursement of 

such costs and expenditures shall come from the issuance of tax-exempt debt, which is not 

expected to exceed $13,800,000 aggregate principal amount.  It is currently the intention 

of the City to principally secure and pay for such tax-exempt debt with net revenues of its 

various governmental funds.  The expenditures to be reimbursed shall be consistent with 

the City's budgetary and financial policy as being the type of expenditures which shall be 

paid on a long-term basis. 

SECTION 2.  The City shall comply with all applicable law in regard to the 

public availability of records of official acts (i.e., adoption of this resolution) by public 

entities such as the City, including making this resolution available to public inspection. 

Page 195



2 

SECTION 3.  It is the intent of this resolution to meet the requirements of 

Treasury Regulations Section 1.150-2 and to be a declaration of official intent under such 

Section. 

SECTION 4.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption hereof. 

ADOPTED, this 2th day of December, 2015. 

 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
 

 

 

        

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

       

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

 

       

City Attorney 

Page 196



 

EXHIBIT A 

 

General Description of Capital Equipment/Vehicles 

And Capital Improvements 

 

 

  

Department Description Est. Amount

Fire - Suppression Public Education Officer Vehicle 31,500                        

Fire - Suppression Fire Engine 556,000                      

Fire - EMS Ambulance 150,000                      

Police - Chief SUV 40,000                        

Police - Field Svcs Pickup 4X4 34,000                        

Police - Field Svcs SUV (2) 64,000                        

Police - Field Svcs Canine SUV 40,000                        

Police - Field Svcs Fusion 26,000                        

Police - Field Svcs Sedan (2) 57,000                        

Police - Field Svcs Sedan (7) 199,500                      

Police - Support Svcs Unmarked Vehicles (3) 90,000                        

Police - Support Svcs School Resource Officer Midsize SUV 30,000                        

Facilities Pickup F150- CNG 35,000                        

Grounds Maint Kubota Tractor 36,000                        

Grounds Maint Pickup F150- CNG 34,000                        

Athletic Complexes TORO GroundsMaster 7200 w/ groomer 23,500                        

Athletic Complexes TORO Vacuum Versa Vac Unit 25,500                        

Athletic Complexes Reel Mower 53,500                        

Recreation - Athletics Vehicle for Rec Director 25,000                        

Recreation - Athletics Ford Focus 18,000                        

Recreation - Programs School Bus (2) 120,000                      

Community Devel Vehicle for Planner 25,000                        

Building Ford Escapes (2) 50,000                        

General Fund Capital 1,763,500                   

Inmate Program 15 Passenger Van 30,000                        

Special Revenue Fund Capital 30,000                        

TOTAL CAPITAL EQUIPMENT TO BE FINANCED 1,793,500                  

Utilities Sewer Plant Expansion - Phase I 12,000,000                 

Enterprise Fund Capital 12,000,000                 

TOTAL CAPITAL EQUIP & IMPROVEMENTS TO BE FINANCED 13,793,500                

Page 197



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Preliminary Development Plan – Copart, Inc.      David Moon 
  

Page 198



    

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

   
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: December 2, 2015 

 ANNEXATION  FROM: Community Development 

 PLAT APPROVAL  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Maps 

X OTHER: Preliminary Development Plan   Site/Landscape Plans 

    Building Elevations 

    Light Pole Fixtures 

    Exterior Wall Photos 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT:         PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN (MAJOR SITE PLAN) - COPART 

       
Request: APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 

COPART AND CONSIDERATION OF WAIVERS; AND ISSUANCE OF 
THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT ORDER. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Copart of Connecticut, Inc. 
 
ENGINEER:   Burkett Engineering c/o Rene J. Schneider, P.E.  
 
ARCHITECT: Fugleberg Koch, PLLC c/o Norman W. Nesmith, AIA 
 
LOCATION: 3351 West Orange Blossom Trail 
 
PARCEL ID #:  01-21-27-0000-00-032 
 
LAND USE: Industrial 
 
ZONING: I-1 
 
EXISTING USE: Underutilized Industrial Facility 
 
PROPOSED USE:  Office, warehouse and outdoor damaged vehicle storage site 
 
TRACT SIZE:   57.89 +/- acres 
 
BUILDING SIZE: 24,000 sq. ft. - Industrial Warehouse (16,500 S.F.) w/ Office Space (7,500 S.F.)   
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)           HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby      IT Director     Fire Chief  

Community Dev. Director        Police Chief    

 
G:\CommDev\PLANNINGZONING\SITEPLANS\2015\Copart\Copart PDP - CC - 12-2-15  

  Page 199



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
COPART – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Mixed Use ZIP Used Car Sales / Tire Sales 

North (County) Rural A-1 Single Family Residential 

East (City) Industrial I-1 Industrial Warehouse 

South (City) Institutional PO/I Cemetery 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Property 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Foliage Nursery 

West (County) Rural R-3 Single Family Residential 

         

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Copart - Preliminary Development Plan (Major Site Plan) proposes to 

renovate and remodel an existing 24,000 square foot metal building for warehouse and office use.  Copart, Inc. 

provides vehicle suppliers (primarily insurance companies) with a full range of services to process and sell intact 

damaged vehicles, principally to licensed dismantlers, rebuilders and used vehicle dealers. 

       

PARKING:  A total of 68 parking spaces are provided (63 required by code) of which 3 are reserved as a 

handicapped parking space.   

 

ACCESS:  Access to the site is provided by an existing driveway cut along West Orange Blossom Trail. 

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  Staff has found the proposed building elevations to be in accordance with the 

City’s Development Design Guidelines. 

   

STORMWATER:   Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site stormwater drainage 

system.  The stormwater management system is designed according to standards set forth in the Land 

Development Code.  

 

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:  The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the 

property. The planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape 

standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.  A tree survey and mitigation plan will be submitted with the final 

development plan. 

   

ENVIRONMENTAL:  Based on the results of the habitat study, the developer must obtain approval from the 

Florida Department of Environmental Protection prior to commencing any site construction activity. 

 

WAIVER REQUESTS: 

 

1. Waiver Request #1:  The applicant is requesting a waiver from LDC 2.02.15.G to allow the installation of an 

eight (8) feet high metal wall along the east, west and south sides of the property. 

 

Justification: The increased eight (8) feet high metal wall will provide increased screening and security of the 

property.   

 

DRC recommendation -- DRC does not support this waiver request.  

 
Page 200



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
COPART – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

2. Waiver Request #2:  The applicant is requesting a waiver to LDC 6.03.01.A to allow the use of rock in lieu 

of a hard surface for the vehicle storage area. 

 

Justification: The vehicle storage area is not accessible to the general public. 

 

DRC recommendation-- DRC supports this waiver request. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 24, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
December 2, 2015 - City Council (1:30 pm)  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends the approval of the Copart Preliminary Development Plan 
and to deny waiver request number one. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 10, 2015, continued this item to the Special Planning 
Commission meeting on November 24, 2015, due to the applicant not providing necessary documentation in a 
timely manner. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its special meeting on November 24, 2015, recommended: 
 

1. Recommended denial (6-0) of Waiver Request No. 1 to allow an eight (8) feet high metal wall to screen 
the site from public view. 

 
2. Recommend approval (6-0) of Waiver Request No. 2 to allow the use of rock in lieu of a hard surface for 

the vehicle storage area. 
 

3. Recommends approval (6-0) of the Copart – Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the findings of this 
staff report. 

 
Staff requests: 
 

1. Denial of Waiver Request No. 1 to allow an eight (8) feet high metal wall to screen the site from public 
view. 

 
2. Approval of Waiver Request No. 2 to allow the use of rock in lieu of a hard surface for the vehicle storage 

area. 
 

3. Approval of the Copart Preliminary Development Plan for the property owned by Copart, Inc., subject to 
the findings of this staff report; and issuance of the Preliminary Development Order.  
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

Page 201



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
COPART – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Preliminary Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Copart of Connecticut, Inc.              

Engineer:  Burkett Engineering c/o Rene J. Schneider, P.E. 
Architect:  Fugleberg Koch, PLLC., c/o Norman W. Nesmith, AIA 
Parcel I.D. No:    01-21-27-0000-00-032 
Location:  3351 West Orange Blossom Trail 
Acres:  57.89 +/-  

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 Page 202



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 2, 2015 
COPART – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 
Application:  Preliminary Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Copart of Connecticut, Inc.              

Engineer:  Burkett Engineering c/o Rene J. Schneider, P.E. 
Architect:  Fugleberg Koch, PLLC., c/o Norman W. Nesmith, AIA 
Parcel I.D. No:    01-21-27-0000-00-032 
Location:  3351 West Orange Blossom Trail 
Acres:  57.89 +/-  

 
  

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 
 

Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214


	Top
	1. 12/2/15 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	Linda - Minutes 11-18-15.pdf

	 12/2/15 - MAYOR&apos;S REPORT - General Election Proclamation
	Election Proclamation - English.pdf
	Election Proclamation - Spanish.pdf

	 12/02 - Employee Recognition - 10 yrs
	 12/02 - Employee Recognition - 10 yrs
	 12/02 - Employee Recognition - 15 yrs
	 12/02 - Employee Recognition - 15 yrs
	 12/02 - Employee Recognition - 20 yrs
	1. 12/02/15 - CC - Consent Agenda - Christmas Parade Application
	Sarah - Christmas Parade.pdf
	Sarah - xmas parade permit 2015.pdf

	2. 12/02/15 - CC - Consent Agenda - Ambulance Bid Rejection
	Susan - Ambulance Bid Rejection.pdf

	3. 12/02/15 - CC - Consent Agenda - Traffic Signal/Property Taking
	Glenn - Traffic Signal - Property Taking.pdf
	Glenn - Traffic Signal - Property Map.pdf

	4. 12-02-15 - Consent Agenda - PS 2 Side Load Mack Trucks
	Sanitation CNG Mack Side.pdf

	5. 12-02-15 - Consent Agenda - PS Front End Mack Truck
	Sanitation CNG Mack Front.pdf

	6. 12-02-15 - Consent Agenda - PS Tractor
	Tractor Kubota.pdf

	7. 12-02-15 - Consent Agenda - PS Inmate Contract #WS1040 
	PS - Staff Report Inmate WS1040.pdf
	PS - Inmate Contract W1040.pdf

	8. 12-02-15 - Consent Agenda - PS Prof Engineering
	PS - Engineering Services Staff Report.pdf

	9. 12/02/15 - CC - Consent Agenda - CRA Brownsfield Designation
	Shakenya - CRA Brownfield Designation Staff Report.pdf
	Shakenya - CRA Brownfield - Approval Letter.pdf
	Shakenya - CRA Brownfield - Info Sheet.pdf
	Shakenya - CRA Brownfield - brochure 1.pdf
	Shakenya - CRA Brownfield - brochure 2.pdf
	Shakenya - CRA Brownfield - Map.pdf
	Shakenya - CRA Brownfield - Chamber of Commerce Letter of Support.pdf
	Shakenya - CRA Brownfield - FBA Letter of Support.pdf
	Shakenya - CRA Brownfield - FDEP Letter of Support.pdf

	1. 12-02-15 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Annex - Ord. #2459
	1 Ord 2459- JTD Land at Rogers., LLC.pdf
	2 Ord 2459 - 2015 Annexation Cycle 3 - Sprdsht.pdf
	3 Ord 2459 - JTD Land at Rogers.pdf

	2. 12-02-15 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Annex - Ord. #2460
	1 Ord 2460- Huy Tan.pdf
	2 Ord 2460 - 2015 Annexation Cycle 3 - Sprdsht.pdf
	3 Ord 2460- Huy Tran.pdf

	3. 12-02-15 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Annex - Ord. #2461
	1 Ord 2461- Property Industrial Enterprises. LLC.pdf
	2 Ord 2461 - 2015 Annexation Cycle 3 - Sprdsht.pdf
	3 Ord 2461- Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC.pdf

	4. 12-02-15 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Annex - Ord. #2462
	1 Ord 2462- Debra Cargil.pdf
	2 Ord 2462 - 2015 Annexation Cycle 3 - Sprdsht.pdf
	3 Ord 2462- Debra Cargil.pdf

	5. 12-02-15 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Annex - Ord. #2463
	1 Ord 2463 - Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC.pdf
	2 Ord 2463 - 2015 Annexation Cycle 3 - Sprdsht.pdf
	3 Ord 2463- Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC.pdf

	6. 12/2/2015 - CC - Ord. 2464 - Second Reading
	GS 2464 - 2nd reading.pdf
	ORDINANCE 2464 - 2nd Reading.pdf

	7. 12-02-15 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Annex - Ord. #2465
	1 Ord 2465 - Jerry Kirkland.pdf
	2 Ord 2465 - 2015 Annexation Cycle 3 - Sprdsht.pdf
	3 Ord 2465 - Kirkland.pdf

	8. 12-02-15 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - FLU - Ord. #2467
	1 Technology Property LLC - Clarcona Rd -  FLU - CC 12-2-15 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2467 - Technology Property LLC - Clarcona Rd - FLU.pdf

	9. 12-02-15 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - Change of Zoning - Ord. #2468
	1 Technology Property LLC - Clarcona Rd ZON - CC 08-12-2-15 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2468 - Technology Property LLC - Clarcona Rd - ZON.pdf

	10. 12-02-15 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - FLU - Ord. #2469
	1 City of Apopka - E Cleveland St -  FLU - CC 12-2-15 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2469 - City of Apopka - E Cleveland St - FLU.pdf

	11. 12-02-15 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - Change of Zoning - Ord. #2470
	1 City of Apopka - E Cleveland St ZON - CC 08-12-2-15 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2470 - City of Apopka - Cleveland St - ZON.pdf

	12. 12-02-15 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - Change of Zoning - Ord. #2471
	1 Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions CC 12-02-15.pdf
	2 Ord 2471 Raynor Shine  - ZON.pdf
	3 Raynor Shine Recycling Solutions Master Plan_Landscape Plan.pdf

	13. 12-02-15 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - PUD Master Plan - Ord. #2472
	1 Race Trac-Autozone PUD - CC - 12-02-15.pdf
	2 Ord 2472  - ZON Autozone.pdf
	3 RaceTrac - AutoZone PUD Master Plan.pdf
	4 RaceTrac - AutoZone Color Elevation.pdf

	14. Reimbursement Resolution #2015-25
	Reimbursement Resolution Staff Report.pdf
	Reimbursement Resolution 2015-25.pdf

	1. 12-02-15 - CC - Site Plan - Preliminary Development Plan - Copart
	1 Coparts PDP - CC- 12-2-15.pdf
	2 Coparts-Site Plan-Landscape.pdf
	3 Copart Building Elevations.pdf
	4 Coparts Light Fixtures.pdf
	5 Coparts Exterior Wall.pdf

	2. Council
	3. Public
	Bottom

